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September 12, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend ah existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., Vendor #155358-
B001, 45 High Street Nashua, New Hampshire, 03060, to continue providing early intervention services
and behavioral counseling to individuals at risk for acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus, by
increasing the price limitation by $114,522 from $446,662 to $561,184 and by extending the completion
date from October 31, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
17% Federal Funds, 83% Other Funds'.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on February 21,
2018 (Item #7), and subsequently amended on June 26, 2019 (Item #78A).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation-of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-75360000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. STD/HIV
PREVENTION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018, 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $8,790 $20,000 $28,790

' Subtotal $68,790 $20,000 $88,790
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05-95-90-902510-22290000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH.
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592 $0 $143,592

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592 $0 $143,592

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $49,070 $94,522 $143,592

.■ ■ ■ . Subtotal $336,254 $94,522 $430,776

05-95-90-902510-51700000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current
Modified
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Modified
Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90021006 ■  $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90021006 $0 $0 $0

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90021006 $41,618 $0 $41,618

'  li \
.

. •»> ,' ^ ■ i Subtotal $41,618 $0 $41,618

1  - Total $446,662 $114,522 $561,184

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing early intervention services and behavioral
counseling to individuals who have been identified to meet the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention's guidelines for routine Human Immunodeficiency Virus testing.

Approximately 234 individuals were served during the original contract period. The Department
anticipates approximately 1,000 individuals will be served from November 1, 2019 through June 30.2020.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew the
contract for up to two (2) years subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance
of services, written authorization of both "parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.
The Department is in agreement with renewing services for eight (8) months at this time, leaving one (1)
year remaining.

The Contractor will continue to provide early intervention services, including routine Human
Immunodeficiency Virus testing, to make individuals aware of their Human Immunodeficiency Virus
status. Individuals who test positive for Human Immunodeficiency Virus will receive health education and
linkage to Human Imrriunodeficiency Virus care services. Linkage to care is essential to ensure that an
individual is provided the opportunity to be placed on anti-retroviral medication with a goal of viral
suppression, which greatly decreases the likelihood of the individual transmitting the virus to others.

The Contractor will provide behavioral counseling to clients who test negative for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus but are at high risk of acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus. The goal of
the behavioral counseling will be to identify behavior changes needed to reduce the individual's risk for
acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.
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Individuals with Human Immunodeficiency Virus, who receive medical services prior to their
condition advancing to Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome, improve their health outcomes which
decreases the likelihood of transmitting the virus to others. Additionally, the United States Preventative
Services Taskforce recognizes that behavioral counseling interventions in a clinical setting are an
important means of addressing prevalent health-related behaviors, such as risky sexual behavior.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the deli very, of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:

1. Referral and Linkage to Care - Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests linked to HIV
care. Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests that attend their first appointment:

•  95% of all newly identified HIV cases will have a documented referral to HIV medical care
at the time of positive test result.

•  90% of all newly identified HIV cases will have documented attendance at their first HIV
medical care appointment within 30 days of date of referral.

2. HIV Testing - Number of tests performed. The vendor(s) will perform a minimum number of
(to be determined within 150 days of award) HIV tests annually following the testing
recommendations outlined in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Routine HIV
Testing Guidelines, 2006.

3. Behavioral Counseling. The vendor(s) will ensure that the Behavioral Counseling intervention
will serve individuals at high risk of acquiring HIV.

•  75% of the Behavioral Counseling caseload shall consist of HIV negative individuals who
identify with one of the following risk factors:

o Male who at the time of referral reports having unprotected sex with men; and

o Person who injects drugs whom at the time of referral reports sharing drug injection
equipment.

The Agreement includes requirements for the Contractor to submit ongoing financial reports.
Financial reports will include program-level and organization-level profit and loss statements, cash
equivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending. The Department will review these reports and discuss
any concerns with the Contractor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close monitoring of
fiscal integrity.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, early intervention services
may not continue to t>e available to New Hampshire residents who are unaware of their Human
Immunodeficiency Virus status. This could result in increased transmission of Human Immunodeficiency
Virus in the commupity. Additionally, behavioral counseling may not be provided to clients, which would
increase their risk and the risk of transmission to others in acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

Area Served; Greater Nashua Area

Source of Funds: 17% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Grant, CFDA# 93.940, FAIN U62PS924538 and 83% Other
Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates.
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In the event that the Federal Funds or Other Pharmaceutical Funds become no longer available,
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

tA^

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Early Intervention Services and Behavlorai Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State"
or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on February 21, 2018 (Item #7), as amended on June 26, 2019 (item #7BA), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #2 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$561,184.

3. Revise Section 7, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity only, of Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of
Services, by replacing it in its entirety with the following:

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. in order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement (total
organization and program-level), and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-
level Profit and Loss Statement shall include ail revenue sources and all related

expenditures for that program. The program-ievei Profit and Loss Statement shall include
a budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Outside of the program-level
Profit and Loss Statement and budget to actual analysis, all other statements shall be
reflective of the entire Partnership for Successful Living organization and shall be
submitted on the same day the reports are submitted to the Board, but no later than the
fourth Wednesday of the month. Additionally, the contractor will provide interim profit and
loss statements for every program area, reported as of the 20^ of the month, by the last
day of every month. The Contractor will be evaluated on the following: a /

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials K ̂
RFP-2017.DPHS-18-EARLY-01-A02 Page1of6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early lnterventlon Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

7.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by the
unrestricted cash on hand.

7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term Investments divided by
total operating expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and in-kind
plus principal payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature \within three (3)
months and should not include common stock. Any amount of cash from
a line of credit should be broken out separately.

7.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and
cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30)
calendar days with no variance allowed.

7.1.2. Current Ratio:

7.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets available

to cover the cost of current liabilities.

7.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

7.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum current

ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the cost
of its current portion of its long-term debt.

7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

7.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

7.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

7.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to cover
its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

7.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by total
assets.

7.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum ratio

of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

7.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

7.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and amount
outstanding for each line.

7.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

7.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-compliance with any
loan covenant or agreement.

7.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

7.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

7.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for three
(3) consecutive months, or

7.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe, then

7.3. The Department may:

7.3.1. Require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to explain the reasons
that the Contractor has not met the standards.

7.3.2. Require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive corrective action plan within
thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 7.2.1 and/or 7.2.2 have not been met.

7.3.3. Terminate the contract.

7.3.3.1. if a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall update the
corrective action plan at least every thirty (30) calendar days until
compliance is achieved.

7.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure continued
access to services as requested by the Department. The Contractor shall
provide requested information in a timeframe agreed upon by both
parties.

7.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to have
a material financial impact on and/or materially impact or impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

7.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all other
financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting
from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement.

7.6. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within five business
days when any Executive Management, Board Officers, or Program Managers for DHHS
contracts submits a resignation or leaves for any other reason.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

4. Delete and replace Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment; Section 1, Payment
for said services shall be made monthly as follows; Subsection 1.1 with the following;

1.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs incurred in accordance
with the approved budget line items in Exhibit B-1 Budget, Exhibit B-2 Budget, Exhibit B-
3 Budget - Amendment #2 and Exhibit B-4 Budget - Amendment #1.

5. Delete Exhibit B-3 Budget - Amendment #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-3 Budget -
Amendment #2.

6. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2017-DPHS-1S-EARLY-OI •A02 Page 4 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Healttvand Human Services

a

Lisa Morris

Director

Date

Harbor Homes Inc.

Date Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of,
undersignec

County of_
officer, personally appeared t

, before the

persoaJdentified dirdctly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknovsrledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature 6f hfistary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title bf Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:
y
1

Harbor Homes Inc.

RFP-2017-DPHS-18-EARLY-01-A02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' ' Name/ J
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2
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Exhibit B-3 Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshirt Department of Heatth and Human Servlcee

HAR80A HOMES. INC.

Ewty InUrvnOon Swvte— and BahavtersI CeunsaBng for WV

CenOactor n

Budeat Raquaal

Budpai Parted: JULY 1. 2019 (hrough Juna U. 2020

Line Item

_Total_Projran>_CM^
Direct Indirect Total

Contractor Share I Match

Direct Indirect Total

Funded by OHHS contract ehare

Direct Indirect ToUl

1 ■ Total Salary/Wageo 104.SU.56 104,514.56 104,514.56 $ 104,514.56

2. Emplovee Benefits 26.128.64 26.128.64 26,128.64 26,128.64

3. Consultants

4. Eqi^pmerX:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Pepretiatton

5. Supplies:

Educational 992.34 992.34 992.34 992.34

Lab 1,192.00 1,192.00 1,192.00 1,192.00

Pharmacy

Medical

Office 1,192.00 1,192.00 1.192.00 1,192.00

6. Travel 1,788.00 1,788.00 1.788.00 1,788.00

7. OccLpency 2,384.00 2.384.00 2,384.00 2,384.00

8. Current Expertses

Telephorte

Ppstape 494.68 494.68 494.68 494.68

Sutwcflptlons

Audit arxl Legal

Irtsurance

Board Experaw

9. Software 1.984.68 1,984.68 1.984.68 1.984.68

10. MarKeling/CommurtcaaorB 4.964.68 4.964.68 4,964,68 4,964.68

11. Staff Education and Training 2.980.00 2.980.00 2.980.00 2,980.00

12. Sut)contract3/Aoreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Conferences 1,037.04 1,037.04 1.037.04 1.037.04

Iridirect experwes/Admtn 22,729.38 22.729.38 22.729.38 22.729.36

TOTAL 172,382.00 172,382.00 172.382.00 % 172.382.00

todNect As A Percatd e( Direct

E:dtit>ll B-3 Budget • Amendment #2

RFP-2017-eiDC-15-CARLY431-A02

Vendor Inltiels

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 DateIM



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othen/vise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or toss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby ccnify that HARBOR HOMES, fNC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980.1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Suiie's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Cenificate Number: 0004S16965

%

BBS

o •9

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

.thisJ.Ilh.day^CMay_A.D..20JS.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. plohinniri -Ti^oc.urfj- do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Offl(^ of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on fMi/i
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the

(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter Into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the ll/^ day of
(Date AmendJFierit* Signed)

4. fh/cr A^^J/-eJrer- is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory) •

of the Agency.

(Title of Contract Signatory)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

v:/

(Signati ifeW the tlSbted Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

By ?y)rjy)Ar>/jrln
(Name of Elected Offi(^ ofofthe Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS. Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certifloate of Vote Without Seal

III day of

(N61 ic/AiOTce of the Peace)

July 1.2005
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77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062

www.harborhomes.org

Harbor
OMES..r

Phone;

Fax;

603-882-3616

603-881-8436

603-595-7414

>4 Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

Mission Statement

To create and provide quality residential and supportive services for persons (and theirfamilies) challenged by mental
illness and homeiessness.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful Living
A collaboration of six affiliated not-for-profit organizations providing southern New Hampshire's most.vulnerable
community members with access to housing, health core, education, employment and supportive services.
www.nhpartnership.org

Harbor Homes • Healthy at Home • Keystone Hall • Milford Regional Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force • Welcoming Light
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

Heath

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 03063

(603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andover. MA

Greenfield, MA
To the Board of Directors of Manchester, nh
Harbor Homes, Inc. Ellsworth, me

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor
Homes, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial Matements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Healthy
at Home. Inc.. whose statements reflect total assets constituting 1% of consolidated
total assets at June 30, 2018, and total revenues constituting 5% of consolidated
total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other
auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Healthy at Home, Inc., is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30. 2018, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc.'s fiscal year 2017 financial state
ments, including the fiscal year 2017 financial statements of the entities included in
these consolidated financial statements (except for Healthy at Home, Inc. which was
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements), and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those
audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which
it has been derived

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidating Statement of Financial Position and the
Consolidating Statement of Activities are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing



and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 20, 2018



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30. 2018

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30,2017)

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash'
Accounts receivable, net
Patient receivables, net
Promises to give
Investments

Inventory
Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net
Deferred compensation plan assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of capital leases payable
Current portion of mortgages payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Tenn Liabilities:
Security deposits
Deferred compensation plan liabilities
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payable, deferred

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2018

480,242 $

1,096,661

2,060,419

1,301,048

192,731

123,078
71,155

5,325,334

30.968,341

16,800

30,985,141

2017

754,353

614,739
2,784.965

1,079,605
8,000

493.543
67,277

101,770

5,904.252

30.353.542

30,353.542

$  36,310,475 $ 36,257,794

$  1,285,423 $ 1,094,935

496,608

865,390

1,742,169
341,071

12,077

4,742,738

68,918

16,800

158,237

15,783,030

8,571.209

24,598,194

29,340,932

6,851,238

118,305

6,969,543

18,304

450,736

1,289,475

1,464,378

33,017

5,582

4,356,427

67,636

79,280
16,245,171

7,618,496

24,010,583

28,367.010

7,561,606
329,178

7,890,784

$  36.310.47S $ 36,257,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2017)

Public Support and Revenue:
Public Support:

State and local grants
Federal grants
Contributions

Other grants
Fundraising events, net
Net assets released from restriction

Total Public Support

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net
Department of Housing and
Urban Development programs

Veterans Administration programs
Contracted services

Rent and service charges, net
Outside rent

Fees for services

Miscellaneous

Investment income (loss)
Total Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

Expenses:

Program
Administration

Fundraising ^
Total Expenses

Change in net assets before depreciation

Depreciation' — •

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

1 emporaniy
Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017
Net Assets Net Assets Total Total

$  11,380,392 $ $  11,380,392 $ 7,395,645
7.496,411 80.300 7,576.711 8,074,192

73,663 613,018 686,681 1,044,621
217,794 451,324 669,118 217,600
20,857 28,097 48,954 33,283

1,383.612 (1.383.612) .

20.572,729 (210,873) 20,361,856 16,765,341

5,686,860 .

5,686,860 5,512,169
3,664,163

- 3,664,163 2,430.161

3,429,882 - 3,429,882 3,420,327
2,213.701 /

2,213,701 2,160,799
1,039,097 - 1,039,097 1,044,751
867,249 - 867.249 825,519
555,551 . 555,551 432,905
344,456

- 344,456 318,808
177,075 • 177,075 27,768
40.632 - 40,632 26.437

18,018.666 - 18,018.666 16.199.644
38,591,395 (210,873) 3^380,522 32,964,985

33,423,301 33,423,301 27,777,021
3,754.447

- 3,754,447 3,176,798
667.731 - 667.731 670.846

37.845.479 - 37.845.479 31,624.665

745,916 (210,873) 535,043 1,340,320

(1.456,284) (1.-456.284) (1.354.446)

(710,368) (210,873) (921,241) (14,126)

7,561.606 329.178 7.890.784 7.904.910

6.851.238 $  .118.305 $  6.969j543 $ 7.890.784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Prpqrgm Administration Fundraistno

Expenses:

Salaries and wages
Client rental assistance

Employee benefits
Contracted services

Occupancy
Payroll taxes

Client insurance assistance

Operational supplies
Grants and donations

Interest expense
Office expenses
Other dient assistance

Retirement contributions

Information technology
Client food artd nutrition services

Travel

Insurance

Professional fees

Miscellaneous

Legal foes

Accounting foes
Conferences, conventions, and meetings
Advertising and promotion
Client counseling and support services
Staff expenses
Membership dues
Client medical assistance

Total Expenses

Depredation

Total Functional Expenses

$  14,520,100 $ 2,272.110 $  435,102
6.475,207 . .

1,822,234 291,863 43,725
1,930,543 67,920 5,586
1,753,278 176,775 4,022
1.157,347 171,856 34,646
923,931 . .

799,811 6,456 219

518,300 39,641 71,553
804,073 126,025 2,768
472,217 73,943 38,674
460,267 50 .

324,433 122,669 6,605
253,023 47,632 3,505
243,474 519 .

218,521 16,835 1,194
152,556 10,724 228

119,833 51,595 6,426
137,963 66,459 1,393
29,722 81,685 226

1,040 105,769 .

86,759 12,227 1,181
83,847 ^ 4,576 9,979
60,218' 367 .

33,117 4,518 699

20,772 2,233 .

20,715 . .

33,423,301 3,754,447 667,731

1.337.587 114,639 4,058

34.760.888 S 3,869.086 $  67r.789

2018 2017

Total Total

$  17,227,312 $ 14,123,846
6,475,207 5,793.879

2,157,822 1,516,722

2,004,049 1134,126
1.934.075 1,733,130

1,363,849 1,059,527

923,931 459,578

806,486 354,235
629,494 752,534

932,866 739,534
584.834 349,044

460,317 123,926

453,707 323,890

304,160 602,060
243,993 217.641
236,550 221,188

163,508 251,962

177,854 163,910

205,615 127,572

111,633 122,421

106,809 115,000
100,167 151,668
98,402 24,842

60,585 106,044

38,334 10,830

23,005 30,190

20,715 ll346
37,845,479 31,624,665

1,456.284 1,354,446

$  39.301.763 - $ 32,979.111

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these finandal statements.



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30,2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2017)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustoients to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable
Patient receivables

Promises to give
Inventory
Other assets

Inaease (Deaease) In;
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Rows From Investing Activities:
Security deposits
Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of investments

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings from lines of credit, net
Payments on capital leases
Proceeds from long-temi borrowings
Payments on long-term borrowings
Proceeds from tax credits

Payments on tax credits
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash. End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non<ash financing activities

2018 2017

$  (921,241) $  (14,126)

1.456,284 1,354,446

724,546 (1.304,307)
(221,443) (242,996)

8,000 (8,000)
(55,801) (67,277)
30,615 76,667

(424,085) 792,902

277,791 381,422

308.054 5,739

6.495 1257.7011

1,189.215 716,769

1.262 25,993

(2,071,083) (640,938)
300.812 (340.897)

(1,768,989) (955,842)

190,488 807,868

(18,304) (43,127)
1,007,713 200,000
(471.269) (422,991)
100,000 -

f21,043) (21.043)

787.585 520.707

207,811 281,634

1.369,092 1.087.458

1  1.576.903 $  1.369.092

932.866 $  660.327

$  4.950.000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization:

The consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. include the
following related entities. All inter-entity transactions have been eliminated.
Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to
as the "Organization".

Harbor Homes, Inc. - Creates and provides quality residential and
supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental
illness and/or homelessness in the State of New Hampshire. Programs
include mainstream housing, permanent housing, transitional housing, and
emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive support services that
include behavioral healthcare, peer support programs, job training, a paid
employment program, and social and educational activities. Harbor
Homes, Inc. also runs a health care clinic that is a Federally Qualified
Health Center (FQHC) offering primary medical services to the homeless
and/or low-income individuals.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - A single-member. New Hampshire
Limited Liability Company, created to develop and manage a new
permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New Hampshire
(Boulder Point, LLC) for homeless veterans. Harbor Homes, Inc. is the
sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.

Boulder Point, LLC - A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company,
whose purpose is to acquire, own, develop, construct and/or rehabilitate,
manage, and operate a new veterans housing project in Plymouth, New
Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a 0.01% investor member
and the manager member.

Harbor HomWII, Inc., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH Ownership, Inc.
- Provides residential services to the chronically mentally ill.

, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - Provides recovery support
services which are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally
competent, including residential, transitional housing, outpatient, intensive
outpatient, family-based substance abuse services, pregnant and
parenting women and children, and offender re-entry services initiative.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - Provides home healthcare services to residents
of Nashua and surrounding communities and strives to enhance the lives
of people with illness or injury through a cooperative relationship with the
community, professional medical service providers, and associations that
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serve people in need of healthcare. Homecare, rehabilitative, and private
duty nursing services are provided in the individual's home setting.

Welcoming Light, Inc. - Provides residential services to the elderly and
disabled and offers training for substance abuse and mental health issues
and training for nonprofit agencies in New Hampshire.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. - Provides
educational case management, mental health and alternative therapy
assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance, substance
abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in the
Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/Aids virus.

Mllford Regional Counseling, Inc. - Operates a regional counseling
center serving the Greater Souhegan Valley area and provides
counseling, guidance, and consultation to individuals, groups, children,
adults, and families.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information

,  does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
longTeffri'pufpb^T, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents."

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of econorriic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.



Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the
Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the
alloNwance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt
ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based
upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections,
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health
care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary.
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of service on the
basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable to
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
allowance for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower
of cost or net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair
values in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains
and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized leased
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or
the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and
related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
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that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal vear
2018.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the
passage of time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources
be maintained permanently, but permit expending of the income generated
in accordance witji donor stipulations.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the
applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered.
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances
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deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services revenue
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to
arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions
under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter
mined, to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions
from revenue.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in^Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at its estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
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raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed-services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage
ment believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Administration expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable
with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years. Additionally, advertising costs are
expensed as incurred.

Change in Net Assets Before Depreciation ~' ~-

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the
Organization's change in net assets, the change in net assets before
depreciation has been provided in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the
exception of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have
been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as
organizations described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for charitable
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contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be private
foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
is required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that
is derived from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt
purpose is subject to income tax. In fiscal year 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business
Income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC Is a single-member, New Hampshire Limited
Liability Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor
Homes Plymouth, LLC has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has
elected to be treated as a partnership.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could
be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities
supportive of the .Organization^ rnLssion. Investments are monitored regularly
by the Organization. Although the fair values of investments are subject to
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization believes that its
Investment strategies are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market condi
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly
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to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob-
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than' quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 4.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 9.

•  Recurring measurement of mortgages payable - Notes 10-12.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
inventory, other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred
revenue, and other liabilities, approximate fair value due to the short-term
nature of the items.
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Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year
consolidated financial statements.

3. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash at June 30, 2018 consists of escrow and reserve accounts
which are held for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows $ 471,769
Reserve for replacements . 547,792 *
Residual receipt deposits 13,062 *
Security deposits 64.038

Total $ 1,096,661

*Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

4. Investments:

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Fair

Value Level 1

>

Level 3

Equities
Other investments

$ 19,426

173,305
$ 19,426 $

173,305

Total $ 192,731 $ 19,426 $ 173,305
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Beginning Balance, July 1. 2017
Additions

Reductions

Transfers in to Level 3

Ending Balance, June 30, 2018

Fair Value

Measurements

Using Significant

Unobsefvable Inputs
Level 3

Other Investments

$  161,946

11,359

$  173,305

5. Accounts Receivable. Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Grants

Residents

Other

Medicaid

Pledges
Security deposits

Total

Receivable

1.497.960

59.701

284,876

246,632

8,000

2.530

Allowance

(39,280)
1,497,960

20,421

284,876

246,632

8,000

2.530

$  2,099,699 $ (39,280) $ 2,060.419

6. Patient Receivables. Net:

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health
Care Center, consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Medicaid

Medicare

Other

Receivable

811.024

235,566

767,453

Allowance

(58,810)
(85.358)

(368,827)

Net

752,214

150,208

398,626

Total $ 1,814,043 $ (512,995) $ 1,301.048
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7. Property. Equipment, and Depreciation;

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of
June 30, 2018 is presented below:

I

Land $ 4,338,288
Land improvements 36,394
Buildings 27,785,977
Building improvements 7,031,206
Software 840,669
Vehicles 404,192
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 725,786
Dental equipment 150,405
Medical equipment 58,022
Construction in progress 1,292.454

Subtotal 42,663,393

Less: accumulated

depreciation (11.695.052)

Total $ 30.968.341

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30. 2018 totaled $1,456,284.

8. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2018 include the following:

Mortgage interest $ 84,503
Payroll and related taxes 827,156
Compensated absences 784,710
Other 45.800

Total $ 1,742,169.

9. Lines of Credit:

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - $1,000,000 of credit available from TO Bank, N. A.
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The Organization is
required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to ID Bank, N.
A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2018, the
credit line had an outstanding balance of $261,746 at an interest rate of
6.00%.
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Harbor Homes, Inc. - $500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank,
N.A. due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest
payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted
daily. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$440,462 at an interest rate of 6.00%.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - $750,000 line of credit
available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a
minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal
Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to Merrimack County
Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding
balance of $348,779.

\

Healthy at Home, Inc. - $250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.,
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The interest rate is
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% (6.00% at June 30, 2018).
The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $234,436 at June 30
2018.

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

10- Mortgages Payable. Tax Credits:

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor
Homes, Inc. to the Community Development Finance Authority through the
Community Development Investment Program, payable through the sale of
tax credits to donor organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property
located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over
ten years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June 30 2018 is
$58,237.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income
Housing TaxXfedits (LIHTC) to Boulder Point, LLC.

Mortgages payable, tax credits are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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11- Mortgages Payable:

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2018 consist

Principal Payment Payment Interest
Balance Amount Freauencv Rate Maturitv

$  3,653.055 $  19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42
3,375,000

- Interest only 4.00% 02/28/19
1,146,876 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33
1,125,000

- Interest only 6.00% 11/22/18
1,118,886 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33
1,041,850 7,768 Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40
631,152 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36
602,012 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30
584,714 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36
443,434 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40
374,102 5,276 Monthly 9.25% 12/01/26
348,728 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03/29/21
272,543 2,077 Monthly 4.83% 06/29/35
256,339 3,369 Monthly 9.28% 01/01/28
243,747 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04/06/42
214.679 1,731 Monthly 7.00% 09/28/36
192,497 3,184 Monthly 9.25% 05/01/25
154.223 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22
150,933 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22
109,834 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 11/10/29
98,762 2,385 Monthly 9.25% 08/01/22
90,208 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37
55,000 - Interest only 3.08% 10/31/19
45,227 r 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35
20.058 1,552 Monthly 4.50% 07/13/19

$  16,348,859 Subtotal

(69,221) Less debt issuance costs

(496.608) Less amount due within one year

$^^J5j783jO^ Mortgages payable, net of current portion

ProDertv/Securitv

615 Amherst Street In Nashua, NH
75-77 Northeastern,Boulevard in Nashua, NH
335 Somerville Street in Manchester. NH
75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH
335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH
59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH
45 High Street in Nashua, NH
46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH
59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
AJids Street in Nashua, NH
14 Maple Street In Nashua, NH
189 Kinsley Street in Nashua, NH
Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH
45 High Street in Nashua, NH
7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH
North Main Street in Nashua, NH
Mobile van

615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH
24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH
3 Winter Street in Nashua, NH
4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua, NH
Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, NH
59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
15 Union Street in Milford, NH

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  496.608
504,104

531,444

543,121

501,920

13.771.662

$  16.348.859

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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12. Mortgages Payable. Deferred:

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2018 total
ing $8,571,209. These loans are interest free, and are not required to be
repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan
agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that
program.

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

City of Manchester:
Somerville Street property

Total City of Manchester

City of Nashua:
Factory Street property
Spring Street property
Strawberry Bank condominiums
High Street fire system

Total City of Nashua

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Strawberry Bank condominiums

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):
Boulder Point property
Factory Street property
Somerville Street property
Spring Street property
Amherst Street property

Total FHLB

NHHFA:

Amherst Street property
Factory Street property
Spring Street property
Charles Street property
Somerville Street property

Total NHHFA

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred

300.000

300,000

580,000

491.000

80,000

65.000

1,216,000

436,400

436,400

952,713

400,000

400,000

398,747

385.000

2,536,460

1.500.000

1,000,000

550,000

32,349
1,000.000

4.082.349

$  8,571,209

Deferred mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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13. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
June 30, 2018:

P"rpose Amount

Speciai events $ 40,224
Housing 20,439
Client services 39 216
Clinic 2,656
Dental 10.000
Miscellaneous 5 770

To'al $ 118.305

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by the passage of time.

14. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC). Net:

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services
provided through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-
party payor, and managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual
rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if
negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are
computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family size.
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the
Organization s uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, the Organization records a provision for bad debts
related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient
Is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies,
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici
pated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to
assess the level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below
100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients
with Incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.

.. 22



Patient services ' revenue (FQHC), net of provision for bad debts and
contractual allowances and discounts, consists of the following:

2018

Provision for bad debts

Total

(241.454)

2017

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient
Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charoes Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid $  1,788.985 $  (283,487) $ $  1,505,498 $  1,470,902
Medicare 1.649,191 (624,839) . 1,024,352 284,040
Third-party 1.597,970 (528.963) . 1.069,007 560,456
Sliding fee/free care 443,680 . (440.720) 2,960 18,900
Self-pay 427.971 - (124,171) 303,800 301.645

Subtotal $  5.907.797 $  (1,437.289) $  (564.891) 3,905.617 2,635.943

(205.782)

$ 3.664.163 $ 2,430.161

15. Client Rental Assistance:

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents.on behalf
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6.5 million is comprised
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ
ization. leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

16. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project:

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a. planned permanent
supportive housing development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for
homeless veterans, and five two-bedroom apartments for low-income families
located on Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth. New Hampshire. The New
Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has awarded Harbor
Homes. Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project. Harbor Homes, Inc.
is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive a
developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed,
the 29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable!
permanent supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor
Homes, Inc. and White River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide
essential supportive services and case management on-site.

17. Deferred Compensation Plan:

In fiscal year 2018. the Organization offered a 401(k) retirement plan. Upon
meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their
wages to the 401 (k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the
employee contribution based on years of service. Total matching
contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30 2018 were
$454,960.
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The Organization maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain
directors (the "SA Plan"). The deferred compensation liability under the SA
Plan was $16,800 as of June 30, 2018 and was recorded as a long-term
liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset in the same
amount.

18. Concentration of Risk:

The Organization received revenue as follows;

Federal grants $ 30%
State, local, and other agencies 20%
Patient services revenues (other), net 15%
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 10%
Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%
Department of Veterans Affairs 6%
All other support and revenue 10%

Total , $ 100%

19. Contingencies:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unassorted at this time. Government activity continues to
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regula
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed. Manage
ment is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance; however, the
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are
not presently determinable.

20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in
this update require that the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain
the change during the fiscal year.of restricted cash as part of the total of cash
and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
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Position to the same such amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 480,242
Restricted Cash 1.096 661

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 1.576,903

21. Change in Accounting Principle:

Effective July 1, 2017, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2015-11,
Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory by replacing the lower of
cost or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net
realizable value is defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and
transportation. Prior to fiscal year 2018, the Organization reported inventory
at the lower of cost or market. This guidance is applied prospectively as
determined by the standard. There is no prior year or current year effect to
the financial statements as a result of this change.

22. Subseauent Events:

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 29, 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. signed a $400,000 short-term note
with a local bank. Interest on the note is required at 2.5% above the bank's
base rate for six months. The note is secured by two properties.

In October of 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. sold two properties. The proceeds
were used.to pay down the short-term note in the amount of $319,000.

Subsequent to year end, and upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans
Housing project, additional Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding
of approximately $2.6 million will be provided to Boulder Point, LLC.

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has
awarded Harbor Homes. Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the Plymouth
NH Veterans Housing project which will be received in fiscal years 2019 and
2020 and will consist of mortgages payable totaling $560,000 to the
Community Development Investment Program.
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PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006oPresen(
2002.pre$ent
1997-Pre3ent
1995-Frejcnt

1995-Present
1982>Prmo(

2003-3006

1980- 1982

1979- 1980

1978- 1979

1977 . 1979

1976

1971 - 1976

President Sc CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force
President & CEO, GNCA, Inc. Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Healthy At Home. Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., MUford, NH
Pres dent & CEO, Welcoming Light. Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

f  Corporation (and amiiates) providing

Consultant

""" '""1 h"lth

Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialisi.

Oriented Communities, Woltham, MA

ippiimiirassurance, and other accountability to state authorities. »H 'y

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
liiiuuclof fw 1.1 imroiJuuoiy group pspohoU.orupy courso olftitd P.pugh ih. Sooiai Woik Dtpinmoi.,

c»..........

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psvchiatrv ma

mTt """""" '""""ling to individuals and group's of tha

Major responsibilities consisted of psycho eduoalional counseling of Upward Bound students suoervisinnof tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy deveCen'



EDUCATION

1988-1991 Riviec CoUcge, Nashua, NH- Bachelor of Sdencc, AccounUng

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS '
Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hampihirc Sodcty of Certified PubUc Accountants
Member of the American Institute of Certified PubUc Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPKRlF.NrK

^ccl. Word. PowerPoint. Pro-Fx Tax software. Pro-Fx Trial balance software. Quickbooks
I cachirce. T-Value, various auditing software programs
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Vanessa J. Talasazan

Education

2018 M.S. Community Economic Development Southern NH University
-Outstanding Student Award, 4.0 CPA

2007 B.A in English with a focus in Communications University of New Hampshire

1999 ~ Current Licensed New Hampshire Real Estate Agent Continuing Education Ongoing

Career History

April 2008-Current Partnership for Successful Living Affiliates Nashua, NH

Background on Agencies/Emplover: A unique partnership amongst several non-profit organizations w/ a combined
annual operating budget of approx. $40 million that share the same CEO, Board of Directors, and some back-end
administration: Harbor Homes, Inc.; Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (Keystone Hall); Welcoming Light; Healthy at Home; and Milford Regional Counseling Services.
Together, the agencies serve over 6,000 individuals and families annually. Named NH's most innovative
nonprofit organization by The NH Center for Nonprofits.

Current Role: Chief Strategy Officer/ Chief of Staff to CEO

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of C-suite leadership across six companies, a hybrid role that
encompasses two complementary positions: that of the Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) and that of Chief of Staff
(COS).

Chief Strategy Officer Responsibilities: Responsible for formalizing the organization's strategic-
planning processes, leading the development of the strategy, translating it for people across functions and
business units, driving organizational change, forging new working relationships and synergies across the
organization, and establishing greater transparency and accountability for those people carrying out the
organization's strategy. In addition responsible for assessing whether strategic initiatives, at all levels of the
organization, are in line with the company's standards and objectives.

Key duties include:

•  Supervise the grant department: responsible for implementing and achieving an annual grant
fundraising campaign of approximately $20 million. Manage team of writers and special project
coordinators to achieve new and repeat grant funding opportunities, effectively balancing the grants'
strategic impact to the PSL.

• Design and initiate new programs and services from conception and funding to launch,
ensuring alignment with the organization's strategic plan.

•  Serve as the lead staff person of the Housing Development Project Management Team:
plan and implement the construction of healthcare facilities and low-income housing
developments including emergency, transitional, and permanent supportive initiatives.



CmiI:I-01- Staff RESPONSlBlLiXiES; Primary responsibility is to enable the CEO to work most effectively with
internal and external stakeholders and fulfill his commitments to the Partnership for Successful Living's
partners, funders, and Board of Directors. Key duties include acting as a gatekeeper to the CEO; advising the
CEO; autonomously competing tasks in place of the CEO; and organizing the CEO's direct reports and other
staff members toward common goals.

Key duties include:

•  Preparing for, and facilitating, "critical path" CEO meetings (e.g., with PSL executive
leadership, current or potential PSL partners, funders, community and business leaders,
government officials, and peer executives).

•  Coordinating projects or commitments directly involving the CEO and his direct reports
•  Independently leading special CEO-initiated projects, ranging from written products to be

authored by the CEO to convening thought leaders on various topics.
•  Developing draft communication on behalf of the CEO ranging from: the CEO update at

Board meetings, to follow up correspondence related to the CEO's various meetings with
PSL funders, partners and staff, to various speaking engagements involving external
audiences.

•  Understanding, communicating, and accurately representing the CEO's point of view on
a wide range of topics at internal and external meetings when appropriate and as
requested.

•  Proactively identifying issues that could impact the successful execution of the CEO's
commitments, elevating issues the CEO should be aware of, and framing/positioning
ideas to resolve the problem/mitigate the risk

•  Supporting the needs of the executive staff in their ability to raise critical issues with the
CEO and receive needed responses, guidance, and decisions.

• Managing critical projects and bring them to successful outcomes by deftly bringing together
internal and external stakeholders for a common purpose, facilitating these individuals to set
aside personal goals and replace them with team goals, and helping them collaborate.

Previous Role: Vice President of Development and Grant Compliance

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of intercompany management team; lead all grant writing, efforts;
supervise a team of development staff and interns; identify, write, and submit federal, state, corporate, and
foundation grant requests; new program development and strategic planning; create and implement evaluations,
outcome measurements, and data analysis tools to help ensure grant compliance; create corrective action plans to
remedy identified compliance issues; expertise in the creation and execution of events, capital campaigns, and
individual and corporate giving activities; liaison with board of directors and major donors.

Achievements include program design leading to more than $120 million in federal, state and foundation grant
funding obtained since 2008, including grants from:

-US Department of Veteran Affairs
-US Department of Housing & Urban Development
-US Department of Labor
-US Department of Health Resources Services Administration
-US Department of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
-Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston



-NH Community Development Finance Authority
-NH Housing Finance Authority
-NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
-NH Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
-NH Department of Justice
-NH Charitable Foundation

2000 - 2008 Assist2Sell Buyers & Sellers Realty Nashua, NH

Licensed NH Real Estate Agent

Primary Responsibilities: Created and negotiated successful contract agreements related to the sale of
residential and commercial properties as an Exclusive Buyer Agent, Seller Agent, or Dual Agent; and upheld
fiduciary duties to the respected parties. Regularly achieved more than $10 million in sales annually.



Ana Pancine

Objective To obtain a position within an organization that offers me the opportunity to apply my experiences
and academic expertise in the Financial field, and that provides me a chance to enhance my
career knowledoe.

Experience December 2006 - Present Hewlett-Packard Nashua, NH

Service Resource Coordinator December 2006 - Presently
•  Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team in a monthly basis.
•  Responsible for revenue booking for two districts, -p
•  Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the department.
•  Provide quality reports for upper management to review the progress of the team.
•  Responsible for ail the billings for Latin America.

August 2001 - December 2006 Electronic Data SystemsfEDS) Nashua, NH

Americas Business Analyst February 2004 - December 2006
•  Manage ten cost centers with annual expenses of $9m and revenue of $18m. forecast on a

quarterly basis, generate expense and revenue accruals, and establish budgetary guidelines
for team rrvembers.

•  Variance reporting monthly for ♦/-I % of forecasted to report to senior management.
•  Complie, reconcile, and obtain approval from customer for account metrics on a monthly basis.
•  Maintain global reporting of 200 employees wtth specific emphasis on geographic alignment,

individual line counts, and organizational charts for account "utillzallon and resource mapping
•  Approve time card for temporary employees, main contact for temporary agencies and

responsible for hliing/releesing of temporary employees.
• Main contact for all customers located in the Latin America territory.
•  Provided Financial Support for account dosing.

1

\

Quality Controller/ System Support Administrator June 2003 - February 2005
• Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.
•  Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting.
•  Responsible for weekly and monthly geography reports.
•  Maintain all employee related spreadsheets updated.
•  Manage quality review reports to ensure policies and procedures are being followed.
•  Mentoring new hires inlhelr assigned positions.
•  Communicating with manager for tools necessary for team.
•  Categorize and notify managers of any performance issues.
•  Provide support for team members with problem solving.

\
J'.
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Per Event Administrator August 2001 - June 2003
•  Responsible for billing revenue.
«  General office filing and organization.
•  Data Entry.
•  Assisting customer needs.
•  Solving any customer issues.
•  Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.
•  Assistant and service provided for all customer iocaled In the Latin

America/Caribbean/Europe territory.

Skills • Windows 98/2000/XP
• SIFT - Finandai Database
• Microsoft Office

•  PEARS/CHAMPWFM
• NCAS/SAP
•  Fluent in Portuguese and Spanish.

Education Hesser College
• Bachelor of Science. Business Administration - Get 2005
Southern NH University
•  l^ursuing MBA and Finandai/intemationai business certitication.

References Available upon request



6racleU SiMa Slronkh-Kalkan MD.

Present Melting Address

Attemattve Malting Address
The Doctor*! OfRoe

Medical Education

Universtdad de Buenos Aires

audad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires

Argentina
MD, 12/2X/1979

School Aarards & Membership in Honorary/ Profesdonal Societies

Cardlolocv Argentine Sodcty: 1982-1986 associated member
Azcuenaga 980, Gudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Intensive Cere Argentine Society: 1985-1992 associated member l992-1997Board's Member
Cnel. Nlcetc Vep 4617, ClodadAutdnomade Buenos Abes, Argentina.
Argentina Assodathm of Enteral and Parenteral NutrWon: 1983-1997, Founder and Board's
Member

Lavalie 3643 3F Oudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Biologic's Securfty Committte Navy Hospital: 1985-1997 Boanft Member 1986-1997
Patricias Argcntlnas 351, Gudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Certifications / Licansure

NPl: 1760751531



State of New Hampshire Futl Ucense 2/1/2012 to 6/S0/2018 fflS553
DEA Registration: FS 29S48S1
SUte of Nw H^pshfre Temporary Ucerrse Date 11/02/2011 to 5/12/2012 #70566
State of Massachusetts Limited Licen» 0222359 Exp. Date 06/30/2005
OSA Registration: AS4148501E136 Exp. Date 06/2005
AC16 Certification Exp. Date

U3.M.LE/E.CF.M.6:08/27/2001

Argentina:

of CrtHtaUon In CrWcl CireMedicine. Diploma of Accreditation, Ust>on, Portugal 1995
N.tlon.1 Ac^emv of Modldno, Oudod Autdnomi do Buenos Aires, Areentlni. Certlflaitlon of
Professional Physicians as Crftical Care Speciatist. 1993.
ttrtiflcate of Specialist Argentine Society of Crftfcai Care, Cludad Autdnoma de
Buenos Aires, Argentina. 1993

ijtational license: 058049 October Active 1980-March 1997 Book 17, Page 18
Pro^nce of Buenos Aires School 2« District: 028446 08/1980 Book Xi page 192
Avellaneda, Province of Buenos Aires, Argentina

Work Experience:

Harbor Care Health and Wallness Center

45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060
radical Director, August 2012-Present
General Practice. November 2011-Present

The Doctor'i OfRoe:
102 Bay Street. Manchester, NH 03104
General Praaice, November 2011-Present

American Red Cross Massachusetts Bay Chapter:
139 Main St. Cambridge, MA 02142-1530

The Doctor's Office:

102 Bay Street, Manchester, NH 03104
First Line Theraphy Lifestyle Educator, Coach. 05 2011-Pre$ent

Carltas Saint Elizabeth's Medical CenUr
736 Cambridge Street Brighton, MA 02135



Department of Internal MedWne: Observer 03/2005-12/2003

Laurence General Hospitai,
1 General Street, Lawrence, MA. 01842
Observer, shadowing an Attending Neurologist 11/2002- 03/2003

Hewlett Packard, Medlcat Division
3000 Minuteman Rd, Andover MA. 01810
Medical Consultant for Utin America Field Operations 09/1987-12/1999

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.
Patrldas Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Chief Surgjcai Care Unit
Clinic and admintstrsttve management of the Unit, Instructor for medical students and
residents. 01/92—03/97

Ctdcflales Olnic
Co ode 851, Qudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Critical Care Coordinator.

Contributed of the management of the Unit Coordinator of Critical Care actualization courses.
07/1991-061993

Otnica Modelo Los Cedros.

San Justo, Provinda de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Chief, Intensive Care Unit
Clinic and adminlstratlvB Management of the Unit. 07/1990-06/1991

Nephrologic Medical Center Oeste.
Qudadeb, Provinda de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Attending Physician, Hemodialysis Unit. 02/1987-08/1988

Navy Hosptui Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.
Patricias Argentinas 351, Dudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Attending Physidan, Critical Care Unit. 07/1984-01/1992

Navy Hospital Major Suigeon Pedro Mallo.
Patridas Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
On call Physidan, Coronary Care Unit. Ol/W-071984

Bazterrlca Olnk

Jurrcal 3002, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
On call Physidan, Critical Care Unlt.09/1980-12/1987



Resldendes/Feitowships

Carltas Ssint CDubeth'c Medical Center
736 Cambridge St, Brighton. MA. 02135 United States of Amerka.

General Surgerv- 07/2004-06/2005
Marvin Lopea M.D. FACS. FRCSC

Hackford Alan M.D.

Untversltv of Salvador
Post Graduate School of medldne
Tucumin 1845/S9. Qudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Umversltary Extension Critical Care 05/1983-12/1984
Professor Eduardo Abbate MO. Course Director. Professor Luis j Gonzalez Montaner MD, Dean
of School of Medicine

Carlos Ourand Hospltai
Cardiology OMsion
Diaz V6lez 5044. Cudad Autdnonta de Buenos Aires. Argentina
Cardlology-lntemal Medicine. 03/1982-06/1984
Alberto Demartlnl MO.. Professor German Strigler MD.

Ignacio PIrovano Hospltai
Monroe 3555, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, ̂ entlna.
internal Medicine. 03/1981-02/1982
Professor Navarret MO. Professor Cottone MD. 03 /1981 • 02 /1982

Qty of Buerras Aires Munldpaltty
Qty of Buenos Aires Hospitals
Crttfcal Care Units

Annual Course of theory and practice In Critical Care.
Professor Francisco Magllo MD.. Claudio Goidini MD., Roberto Menendez MD..Profe$sor
Roberto Padron MD. 03/1980-02/1981

PubBcatlons/ Presentations/Poster Sessions

Gradeta SIMa 5lronich, Biochemistry Faculty, UBA. Nutrition Department and Mater Del,
Nutrition in acute panaeatltis. Publication Date: 09 /1999. Volume: 1. Pages: 235; 242.

Bazaluzzc J M; Sironich Graciela; Catalano H.; Qulroga J. La Prensa Medica Argentina.
Nutritional Evaluation by anthropometric method. Publication Date: 11 /1992, Volume: N/A.



Slronich Gradela; CataUno H.; Mllel L; Lancestremere M. Magailne XXIV Annual Meeting of
the Argentine Sodety of Qlnlcal Investigation. Sodium and plasmatk otmotarttv variations in
neurosurglcal patients. Publication Date; 11 / 19S9, Volume; 1 /1989> Pages: N/A.

Volunteer ExperierKe

American Red Dt»s Nashua Gateway Chapter
28 Concord Street. Nashua. NH 03064
Health and safety: CPR/AEO for Adults. Children. Infants and First Aid Instructor. 04>2011'
present.

American Cancer Sodety
Collaborated with 2009 Annual Fund

2009 Supporter. NH.

Spanish Hospital.
Belgrano 2975, Oudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. 01209
Oncology Department, Voluntary Physldan 01/1980-07/1980

Spanish Hospital.
Belgrano 2975, Cludad Aut6r>oma de Buenos Aires. Argentina. 01209
Emergency Room Volunteer. 03/1079-03/1980

Evtta General Hospital.
Rio de Janeiro IBIO. lands, Provinda de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Emergency Room Volunteer. 09/1974-12/1974

Dr Jose Estevet Psychiatric Hospital,
Garibaldi 1400. Tempcrley, Provinda de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Volunteer. 08/1972-07/1973

Hobbles & Interests

Travel

Reading fiction, nonfictlon and history
Theater

CooUng



Language Fluency (other than English)
Spanish

Other AccompUshmenU.

New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Latino Affairs. Member of the Board OS/2010-
present. Secretary ll/2D10-present
FLT Lifestyle Educator Certification. March 2011
American Red Cross Gateway Chapter: CPR/AED for Professional Rescuers and Healthcare
providers Instructor Certification 04/08/2011
American Red Cross Gateway Chapter: CPR/AED for Adults. Child, Infant; First Aid Lay responder
Certlflcstlon. 03/21/2011

Fundamentals of Instructor Training Certification 03/21/2011
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JONATHAN W. BROWN

EDUCATION

2014 MBA

2012BSIT/BS

Masters Business Administration, University of Phoenix
Bachelor of Science Information Technology/Business Systems Analysis,
University of Phoenix

EXPERIENCE

01/17 HARBOR HOMES, INC., Nashua, NH 03060
501(c)(3) integrated heahh, social service, and housing system with revenues over $30MM

Clinic Director (01/17 to present^
Responsibilities: Oversight of day-to-day operations of Harbor Care Health & Wellness
Center, a division of Harbor Homes, Inc. The organization maintains three sites including
a mobile van and provides medical, mental health, substance misuse, dental, pharmacy,
and 24x7 recuperative care with a focus on homeless and veteran clients.

12/06 to 12/17 INDIAN STREAM HEALTH CENTER, INC., Colcbrook, NH 03576
501(c)(3) Federally Qualified Health Center with revenues over $7MM

ChiefExecutive Officer (1/15 to 12/17)

Responsibilities: Management of two delivery sites covering three states providing
medical, mental health, substance misuse, and pharmacy services to approximately 4,000
patients annually. Reports to Board of Directors. Direct reports include Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Health Officer, Compliance Director, grants management and marketing
staff.

Accomplishments:
• National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) Level 111 Patient-Centered Medical
Home (PCMH) Accreditation
• 9% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year 2015 and 8% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year
2016

• Expansion of Oral Health, Mental Health, and Substance Misuse Services
• Hired eight clinical providers in 18 months (5 medical and 3 behavioral health)
• Instituted $15.00 livable wage
• Coordinated the development of a two-year strategic plan, including new Mission and
Vision Statements

• Grown grant funding approximately 125% since 2015
• Hired, promoted or realigned the following positions: Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Health Officer, Pharmacy Director, Behavioral Health Director, Medical Health Director
and Director of Human Resources.



Chief Financial Officer fS/l 2 to 1/15")

Responsibilides; Management of $5+ million budget, including two delivery sites
serving three states providing medical, misuse,
services to approximately 4,000 patient^^Qg^j^J^|g|g2^|^ the
Direct reports iariTr*^ Directors, Front Desk
and Scheduling Manager, and Revenue Cycle Manager.
Accomplishments:
• Increased Net Fee Revenue 15% from prior period
• Increased Gross Collections from 42% to 86%

• Reduced Fee Receivables by 60% and Bad Debt Allowance by 60%
• Aggregate Insurance Days in AR = 45
• Managed $500,000 capital renovation project at Colebrook, NH facility which included

a pharmacy, facility generator, elevator, and ADA upgrades
• Opened retail and 340B Pharmacy in May 2013
• Managed Design/Build capital project to open satellite site in Canaan, VT in May 2014
• Averaged 9% Operating Margin Fiscal Years 2012 - 2015

Information Svstems & Facilities Mana2er f 12/06 to 7/12)

Responsibilities: Management of Electronic Health Record, Patient Management
System, hardware, software, network, all data systems, facility and environmental safety
and security. Report to Chief Financial Officer. Direct reports included Information
Technology Assistant, Housekeepers.
Accomplishmeats:

• Facilitated implementation of Electronic Health Record and Patient Management
System
• Transitioned paper payroll systern to electronic system, including services from ADP
• Facilitated development of Bi-directional Lab interface with Hospital
• Managed $1 rhillion capital project that included 2,400 sq/ft addition and renovations
• Managed capital campaign for above mentioned capital project that raised $188,000
• Developed IT and Facilities Management policies and procedures manual

PROFESSIONAL/COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

Medical Group Management Association, 2017
American College of Healthcare Executives (enrolled in Fellowship Program), 2017
North Country Health Consortium (Board of Directors), 2017 {Treasurer 2016 and 2017)
North Country Community Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017
New Hampshire Rural Accountable Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017
North Country Chamber of Commerce (Board of Directors), 2011-2014, 2017 {Vice
President 2012 and President 2013)
North Country Accountable Care Organization (Board Directors), 2015
George Washington University Geiger Gibson Capstone Fellowship in Community Health
Policy and Leadership, 2015
Neil and Louise Tillotson Grantee Learning Community, 2013
Office of Rural Health Policy Rural Voices Leadership Institute, 2012
Leadership North Country Program, 2011
Bi-State I^dership Development Program, 2010-2011



ELISABETH MAGUIRE, LICSW

AffiHations and Specialized Training

• MA LICSW since January 2009, NH LICSW since February 2014

• Member ofNational Health Service Corps 2016>2018

• Qualified to provide supervision for LICSW licensure since 10.3.2016

• Complicated Grief Treatment Level I and 2, Columbia University School of Social Work 2017

• Certificate Program in Cognitive and Behavioral Interventions, Boston University School of Social Work 2012

• Trained in DBT through Two Brattle Center 2005

• National Association of Social Workers member since 2005

Education

Smith College School for Social Work, Northampton, Massachusetts, MSW 2006
•  Thesis: Evidence-Based Practice and Clinical Social Work: The Ways in Which Social Workers Make

Practice Decisions and Track Client Progress

•  Community Project: Developed focus group on cultural issues and domestic violence for the Women's
Resource Center of Rhode Island

Saint Michael's College, Colchester, Vermont, BA, Psychology 2001
•  Degree granted Laude
• Member of Psi Chi National Honor Society

Ctinlcai Experience

Behavioral Health Psychotherapist and Clinical Supervisor, Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center,
Nashua, NH (February 2015 to present)
•  Developed Partial Hospital Program for individuals with co-occurring mental health and substance use

disorders

•  Provide management and supervision to therapy staff and students in Behavioral Health Department
•  Conduct individual psychotherapy with adults using CBT informed treatment to an array of mental health

and addictive disorders for clients experiencing a variety of significant psychosocial stressors, including
homelessness and poverty

•  Provide biopsycbosocial assessments and psychotherapy taking into account cultural background, gender,
sexual orientation, and other types of diversity



• CoUaboraie with a multidisciplinary treatment team

Case Manager, McLean Hospital, Alcohol Belmoot, MA (January 2018 to present)
•  Assess psychosocial needs of c#S!to^8ftWf69W!flftySi8fit^Ribstance use disorder
•  Collect collateral information from friends and family regarding client's history of substance use
•  Collaborate with multidisciplinary team consisting of physicians, nurses, and mental health staff
•  Complete timely documentation in EPIC medical record system

Clinical Social Worker, Department of Mental Health, Tewksbury Hospital, Tcwksbury, MA (May 2014 to
May 2016)

• Assess biopsychosocial needs of chronically mentally ill clients who fmquently are dually diagnosed
•  Provide case management for clients of diverse culluial and socioeconomic backgrounds
•  Create treatment plans as a collaborative e^ort with clients and the multi-disciplinary team
•  Interface with mental health providers within and outside of the Department of Mental Health
•  Coordinate care, outpatient mental health therapy referrals, and assist in securing bousing in the process of

discharge planning

Outpatient Mental Health Clinician, Brigbam and Women's Faulkner Hospital. Boston, MA (February 2010 to
January 2015)

•  Conduct outpatient individual psychotherapy with adults using CBT and DBT informed treatment
modalities to address mood and anxiety disorders and adjustment to life transitions and medical issues

•  Provide biopsychosocial assessments and psychotherapy taking into account cultural background, gender,
sexual orientation, and other types of diversity

•  Collaborate with a multidisciplinary treatment team
•  Conduct telephone screenings on intake line and determine appropriateness for individuals to have a

detailed in-person assessment for psychotherapy

Medical Psychiatry Service Clinical Social Worker, Brigham and Women's Faulkner Hospital, Boston, MA
(October 2011 to May 2014)

•  Participate in psychiatric assessment of patients from diverse backgrounds presenting to the emergency
department and on medical floors while taking into account various biopsychosocial inBueoces

•  Collect collateral information from Bunily members, outpatient treatment teams, and other agencies
•  Obtain insurance verification and authorization

•  Facilitate timely patient dispositions through coordination of hospital admission or referral to lower level of
care

Inpatient Psychiatry Cllnlcol Social Worker, Brigham and Women's Faulkner Hospital. Boston, MA (October
2006 to February 2010)

•  Perform biopsychosocial assessments on individuals experiencing acute psychological distress
•  Create treatment plans for patients accounting for their needs as a whole person
•  Provide individual psychotherapy for patients experiencing mood and anxiety disorders, thought disorders,

and substance abuse problems
•  Provide family assessments and family therapy
•  Provide DBT informed group therapy
•  Provide coordination of care and outpatient mental health therapy referrals in the process of discharge

planning
•  Treatment provided in the context of collaborating with an interdisciplinary treatment team on a fast paced

23-bed psychiatric unit



Social Work Intern, Adult Morning Dialectical Behavior Therapy Program and Adult Evening Program,
Two Brattle Center, Cambridge, MA (September 2005 to April 2006)

• Work with highly suicidal and self-injuring adults to decrease life threatening behaviors and build a life
worth living through the use of manualized treatment methods

•  Co-lead DBT skills groups with staff psychologists and psychiatrists
• Help clients increase their interpersonal effectiveness, regulate emotions, tolerate distress, and become

more mindful of the present moment
•  Provide on-call skills coaching to clients in crisis in order to help clients use skills learned while in

treatment at Two Brattle Center
• Member of Two Brattle Center Dialectical Behavior Therapy consultation team
•  Co-lead psychodynamic groups with staff psychologists and mental health clinicians
•  Provide clinical administration and case management to young adults

Social Work Intera, Adolescent InpaUent Unit and Safe Quest Partial Hospital Program, Bradley Hospital,
East Providence, RI (September 2004 to April 2005)

•  Provide family therapy to families of adolescent patients
•  Gather collateral information from multiple sources
•  Assist in after-care planning as a member of a multidisciplinary team
•  Lead weekly therapeutic activity group for six to eight adolescents to prevent the need for higher level of

care

•  Conduct bi-weekly individual therapy for three adolescents in crisis

Television Annearance

•  Interviewed on WMUR NH Channel 9 on connection between mental health and substance use disorders
July 24,2017



Jennifer Carol Parson, R.N., B.S.N.

OBJECTIVE:

To combine my global health & community-based work experience Into a public health position, which focuses
on prevention and Intervention. My goal is to sen/e the underserved, and to combine my nursing skills, with my
training and organizational skills. I wish to mix clinical work with health administration and serve the community,
preferably In a community health organization.

EXPERIENCE

Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center November 2018 • Present
Program Manager of HIV Early Intervention Services

•  Coordinating and/or delivering training of Primary Care staff In rapid POO testing; HIV test counseling;
linkage of newly diagnosed and PrEP

•  Coordinating the adoption/adaptations of a behavioral intervention for High Risk Negatives according to
CDC requirements; training on tf>e intervention and delivery in Primary Care

•  Coordinating and delivering trainings on linkage and health literacy to newly diagnosed to Primary Care
Providers

•  Assisting in the creation of PrEP program and delivery in Primary Care
•  Assisting In the delivery of all EIS services in Primary Care as needed.
• Writing and maintaining EIS policies and protocols.
•  Assistance and guidance on updating EHR to assist with data collection. PrEP treatment, and EIS refenal

tracking and services.

•  Outreach to key points of entry in the community and the setting up a fomnal refenal site for support services
to EIS newly diagnosed and high-risk patients.

•  Creation of program educational material, communications, flyers for EiS
•  Maintaining compPance with program funding contracts; communication with funders; work plans and

documentation erf deliverables; and regular required data collection and reporting.
•  Facilitating intemal and external communications to support EIS program service delivery.
•  Ongoing maintenance, quality assurance, evaluation and monitoring of EIS services

Personal self-care feb 2015 - November 2018

Luang Prabang Hospital for Children - Luang Prabang, Laos August 2014 - February 2015
Director of Nursing
• Worked side by side with local and ex-patriot staff to open up the first children's hospital In Luang

Prabang, Laos.
•  Provide access to early health care in the areas of communicable disease, HIV screening/treatment,

pediatrics, and health education.

•  Recruited and hired local nurses to begin a 12-week training program in English and Pediatric nursing.
•  Provided lectures and one-on-one mentorship to nurses and doctors.

•  Equipment procurement from multiple vendors for the new hospital.
•  Assisted in grant writing in the area of infant and child mortality.

•  Oversaw all nursing, equipment and supply related issues.
University of Caltfbrnia, San Francisco (UCSF) San Francisco, OA
Staff Nurse H, Intensive Cere Nursery June 2000 • February 2005
Per Diem Nurse, Intensive Care Nursery November 2005 • November 2006
Staff Nurse III, Pediatric/Neonatal Critical Care Emergency Transport Team July 2007 - February 2014
Dispatch Call Cenfer and Administration Assistant February 2014 - August 2014
•  Served as a staff nurse at this level 3 neonatal and pediatric hospital.
•  Stabilization and transport of critically III Infants and children to UCSF.
•  Cardiac Care Team 2001-2002.

•  Serve as a admission nurse, attending all high-risk deliveries.
•  Exhibit motivation and dedication by providing the highest quality of care to each patient and their

families.



• Worked in the life-flight dispatch unit in a fast-paced call center answering calls, bridging to multiple

outside m^es of
• ̂^at^ EMR In the data collection per state guidelines for all neonates (<28 days) for referral

tracking and available services.

•  Tracking different team positions at all times and entering that data into our database.
•  RItng, faxing, helping of presentations, payroll, and general administrative work.

International Pediatric Outreach Project (IPOP) / Global Strategies
Director of Nursing 2006 - 2014

•  Served as a board member and nursing director for multiple projects in:

•  Saragur India:

•  Democratic Republic of Congo, Africa: EIS for at risk sex workers in the area of primary care,
HIV screening, prevention, and treatment

•  Liberia, Africa: Focused on maternal child transmission of HIV. Data entry for tracking and access
to services In at risk communities.

•  Fundraislng and tax management for IPOP
•  Organizing International transportation, accommodations, and Insurance for volunteers.

•  Keeping a calendar for board meetings, fundraisers, and passport Information.
•  Maintaining potential donor and tax credit database.

•  Providing support to other board members writing proposals and grants.
Angkor Hospital for Children Siem Reap, Cambodia March 2005 - August 2005
Director of Nursing Education Novemt^er 2006 - July 2007

• Worked at this NGO, helping to improve nursing knowledge when caring for infants and children with
Intensive care needs.

•  Organization of nursing documentation for the ICU.
• Worked as a technical advisor in the newly accredited teaching hospital.

•  Dally hands on nursing teaching and lectures regarding patient care, procedure, and critical thinking.

•  Created nursing protocols to standardize and Improve patient care.

•  Established weekly nursing journal club enabling nurses can stay on top of current evidence-based
practice.

•  Educated staff on computer use from internet skills to spreadsheets and work documents.

•  Focus on Maternal child prevention of HIV transmission
Partners In Health Neno, Malawi May 2013-August 2013
Nurse Educator

•  Instruction to local health care providers on the topic of Helping Babies Breath.

•  Establish a 4 t>ed Neonatal Unit.

•  Provided lectures and one-on-one mentorship In the delivery and care of neonates.

•  Provided housing for at risk mothers at 32 weeks gestation for early detection of HIV, prevention of
transmission to unborn child, and access to health providers in horne villages.

Heal Africa, Goma, Democratic Republic of Congo March 2008 - June 2008
Director of Nursing Education and Recruitment - June 2009 - May 2010
•  Instruction to local health care providers on the topic of Neonatal Resuscitation "
• Establish a 10 bed Neonatal Unit

•  Identified and retained dedicated neonatal nurses and provided one on one mentorship in providing
care of the sick neonate.

•  Established nursing charting and unit protocols that are now serving as a role model for the rest of the
hospital.

•  Provided long-term housing and skills training to intermittently displaced women and their children due to
war, WF, rape, HIV ostracized from their home villages.

•  HIV and SID screening, prevention and treatment.
SwamI VIvekanada Youth Memorial Hospital Saragur, India September 2005 - October 2005
Research Nurse August 2007 • October 2010

• Worked with this NGO, helping to improve nursing knowledge in basic newt>orn care,.
•  Started a research project dealing with infant mortality.



•  Returned to SVYM to follow up on research and perform data entry and the surveys that were given to
both hospitals bom babies and village bom babies.

Luclle Packard Children's' Hospital @ Stanford Palo Alto. California February 2003 - November 2003
Relief Nurse, Intensive Care Nursery

•  Served as a relief nurse at this Level 3 regional referral center. Responsible for providing care similar to that
listed at UCSF. (see above)
CERTIFICATIONS / LICENSE

•  Basic Life Support (BLS), Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP), Pediatric Advanced Life Support
(PALS)

•  Registered Nurse - State of California
•  Introduction To Medical Coding - May - July 2018

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND

•  SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY San Francisco. California May 2000
Bachelor of Science In Nursing

•  FOOTHILL COLLEGE Los Altos, California June 1997
Associates in Science

SKILLS

Word. Excel. PowerPoint. Salesforce. Golden Hour. Social Media. ICD • 10 CM. CPT



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Vendor Name: Harbor Homes, Inc.

Name of Program/Service: EIS Key Personnel

I  BUDGET PERIOD: FY 2020

Name & Title Key. Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary ot

Key

Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of
Salary Paid'by

:  Contract

Total Salary
Amount Paid by

Contract

Peter Kelleher, President and CEO $338,146 0.00% $0.00

Patricia Robitaille, CFO $150,000 0.00% $0.00

Vaness a Talasazan Chief Strategey Officer $115,000 0.00% $0.00'

Ana Pancine, Chief Revenue Officer $115,000 0.00% $o:oo

Graciella Sironich-Kalkin, Medical Director $208,000 3.00% $6,240.00

Jonathan Brown, Clinic Director $130,000 2.00% $2,600.00

Elisabeth Maguire, Clinical Supervisor $75,000 13.30% $9,975.00

Jennifer Parson, Program Manager $69,010 100.00% .  $69,0.10.00

$0 0.00% $0=00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0;00
lUIAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of budget request) $87,825.00

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership {Executive Director, CEO. CFO, etc.).
These personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary Is paid from the contract. Provide their name,
title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
I

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZENDRJVE, CONCORD, NH 0330J
603-271-4501 i.SOO-852.3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 7. 2019

iM-/

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House ^
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., Vendor #155358-
B001, 45 High Street Nashua. New Hampshire. 03060, for the provision of early intervention services
and t>ehavioral counseling to individuals at risk for acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus, by
increasing the price limitation by $99,478 from $347,184 to $446,662 and by extending the completion
date frorri June 30. 2019 to October 31, 2019. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
51% Federal Funds, 49% Other Funds. ■ .

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on February 21.
2018 (Item #7).

Funds are anticipated to be available in Slate FiscaJ Year (SFY) 2020 and SFY 2021. upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office.
05-95-90-902510-75360000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. STD/HIV
PREVENTION

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Numt>er

Current
Modified
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Modified
Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $30,000 $0.00 $30,000

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $30,000 $0.00 $30,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $0.00 $8,790 $8,790

Subtotal $60,000 $8,790 $68,790



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-90-902510-22290000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL

SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBAtES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

\ Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $143,592 $0.00 $143,592

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $143,592 $0.00 $143,592

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $0.00 $49,070 $49,070

%  *

•  • -j- ■ 1*
Subtotai $49,070 $33^,254

05-95-90-902510-51700000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc ;
90021006 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90021006 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90021006 $0.00 $41,618 $41,618

Subtotal $0.00 $41,618 $41,618

.  ■■■ y- ' -I, 1
Total $347,184 $99,478 $446,662

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing early intervention services and behavioral
counseling to individuals who have been identified to meet the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention's guidelines for routine Human Immunodeficiency Virus testing.

Individuals with Human Immunodeficiency Virus, who receive medical services prior to their
condition advancing to Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome, improve their health outcomes, which
decreases the likelihood of transmitting the virus to others. Additionally, the United States Preventative
Sen/ices Taskforce recognizes that behavioral counseling interventions in a clinical setting are an
important means of addressing prevalent health-related behaviors, such as risky sexual behavior.

The approximate numbers of individuals served during the original contract period Is 234. The
Department anticipates another 500 individuals will receive services during this contract renewal period.
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The original agreement. Included language in Exhibit 0-1, that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, sut^ect to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing sen/ices for four (4) months at this time.

The Contractor continues to provide early intervention services, including routine Human
immunodeficiency Virus testing, to make iridividuals aware of their Hurnan Immunodeficiency Virus
status. Individuals who test positive for Human Immunodeficiency Virus will receive health education and
linkage to Human Immunodeficiency Virus care services. Linkage to care is essential to ensure that an
individual is provided the opportunity to be placed on anti-retroviral medication with a goal of viral
suppression, which greatly decreases the likelihood that the individual will transmit the virus to others.
The Contractor will provide behavioral counseling to clients who test negative for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus but are at high risk of acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus. The goal of
the behavioral counseling will be to identify behavior chariges needed to reduce the individual's risk for
acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to rrieasure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

1. Referral arid Linkage to Care - Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests linked to HIV
care. Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests that attend their first appointment;

95% of ail newly identified HIV cases will have a documented referral to HIV medical care
at the time of positive test result.

90% of all newly identified HIV cases will have documented attendance at their first HIV
medical care appointrpent within 30 days of date of referral.

2. HIV Testing - Number of tests performed. The vendor(s) will perform a minimum number of (to
be determined within 150 days of award) HIV tests annually following the testing
recommendations outlined in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Routine HIV Testing
Guidelines, 2006.

3. Behavioral Counseling. The vendor(s) will ensure that the Behavioral Counseling intervention will
serve individuals at high risk of acquiring HIV.

75% of the Behavioral Counseling caseload shall consist of HIV negative individuals who
identify with one of the following risk factors:

o Male who at the time of referal reports having unprotected sex with men; and

o Person who injects drugs whom at the time of referral reports sharing drug injection
equipment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, early intervention services
may not continue to be available to New Hampshire residents who are unaware of their Human
Immunodeficiency Virus status. This could result in increased transmission of Human Irnmunodeficiency
Virus in the community. Additionally, behavioral counseling may not be provided to clients, which would
increase their risk and the risk of transmission to others in acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

Area served: Nashua Area.

Source of Funds: 51% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Grant, CFDA# 93.940, FAIN U62PS924538, and 49% Other
Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully sut>mitted.

J^vA. mIvJeffrey A. Mayers
Commissioner

Tht Oepartmenl ofHcoUh and Human Services' Mission is lojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for eitisens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early IntervenUon Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Earty Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV

This 1® Amendment to the Early Intervention Services for Human Immunodeficiency Virus contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") Is l>y and l)etween the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Hartwr
Homes. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business
at 45 High Street. Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor end Executive Council
on February 21.201B, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and condiUons specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; aruJ

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worit, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P*37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the Stale may modify the scope of worit and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price Bmitalion. and
modify the scope of services to support continued daUvery of these senrices; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment#! remain in fun force and effect and

NOW THEREFORE, in conslderallon of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Fonn P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Comptetton Dale, io read:
October 31.2019.

2. Fonn P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limilatlon. to read:

8446.662.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan White, Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Tdsphone Number, to read:

603-271-9B31.

5. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Senrices in Its enSrety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1 -
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1.1 and replace with:

1.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs Incurred in accordance with
the approved budget line items in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet.

7. AddExhibitB-3. Budget Sheet, Amendment #1

8. Add Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet, Amendment #1

Harbor Homes Inc Amendrnemfi
RFP-Wir-OPHS-tSEARLY-OZ



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council-approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Departm^t of Health and Human Sen/ices

Date

Title: iSPrtb
MiCX

Natrie:

Harbor Homes Inc.

r^e / NameT^^;^
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Xjg^ County of on . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared thef>erson identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in
the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Niame and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

;  .£ ; , MyCom'mLssion Expires: WIUiAMCiMAnmN
,  ̂ «fU8tfo®ofthePaaoo-KturHampshire

-/ . My Commtelon Expires November 4,2020
'■ '<y>^

,.-v

Harbor Homes Inc. Amandmert
RFP.2017-OPHS-16-EARLY-02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Servlcee and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance,
and execution. — • —

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date
CliPh

/hName.

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hart)or Homes Inc.
RFP-2017.OPHS-1 e-eARLY-02

Amendment 01

Page 30(3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for - -
Human immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to Ait Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders rnay have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to
mc^rfy Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Early Intervention Services (EIS) for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) to all ElS-eligible individuals receiving
primary care services in order to assist individuals who are unaware of their
HIV status to leam of their status and receive either referral to prevention
services or referrals to linkages to HIV care services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Behavioral Counseling services to all EIS
eligible individuals who test negative through EIS for HIV but are identified
to be at high risk of acquiring HIV.

1.5., The Contractor shall develop policies and procedures for delivering Early
Intervention Services (EIS) and Behavioral Counseling Interventions in
accordance with EIS Standards of Care.

1.6. The Contractor shall hire one (1) PTE Master's level program coordinator
and one (1) .250 FTE Behavioral Health counselor, both of which shall be
dedicated in their capacity to perfomn duties specified in Section 2 Scope of
Work.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor ^all continue implementation of an Early Intervention
Service (EIS) Program that follows the Department's New Hampshire Ryan
White Program Standards of Care for EIS and the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention Routine HIV Testing Guidelines (2006).

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure the EIS Program services include but are rK>t

Haf1x>r Homes. Inc. Exhibit A, Am«rKtmeni 01 Contractor Initials

RFP-2017-etDC-15-EARLY
Page 1 of 9 Date•m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services— -
Early Intervention ̂ rvices and Behavioral Counseling for - - -
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment

limited to:

2.2.1. Routine HIV Testing and Targeted Counseling;

2.2.2. Referral Services;

2.2.3. Linkage to Care; and

2.2.4. Outreach Services and Health Education/Risk reduction related
to HIV diagnosis as well as literacy training to HIV positive clients
to navigate the HIV system of care.

2.3. The Contractor shall 'deliver Behavioral Counseling inten/entions as
outlined by the United States Preventative Services Taskforce (USPSTF),
as approved by DPHS.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure Behavioral Counseling, as developed in
collaboration with the Department, is provided to individuals who are
identified as being at high risk for acquiring HIV.

2.5. The Contractor shall reach the target population through external referrals,
outreach activities: and strong collaborative relationships with area
agencies. The Contractor shall:

2.5.1. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with a fact sheet that provides
information and answers to questions that may be received from
patients about the HIV testing program.

2.5.2. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with scripts to address testing and
HIV risk with patients and to make effective referrals to HIV
testing and health clinicians.

" 2.5.3. Distribute printed materials regarding EIS to key agencies and
public areas in the City of Nashua.

2.5.4. Ensure printed materials in Section 2.5.3 above include, but are
not limited to: <

2'.5."471. Flyers.' ' '

2.5.4.2. Testing cards.

2.5.4.3. Condoms with testing information labels.

2.5.4.4. Informational pamphlets.

2.5.5. Ensure information regarding EIS is available on-line through the
clinic website and partners' Facebook pages. The Contractor
shall encourage partner agencies to provide similar access to
EIS/HIV information on their websites.

2.5.6. Provide education and in-house training to partner agencj^staff

HartX)f Homes. Inc. ExWbttA, Arnandrnentm Conlrectv initials
RFP-2017-BIOC-15-EARLY

Page 2 of 9 Data Wf



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services— •- - • ^ s-s—
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for - • -- • - - -
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

..-u T Exhibit A; Amendment #1 " = ' - - v riLi:

on HiV testing and effective referrals to services.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide patient follow up that including but is not limited
to:

2.6.1. Informing patients on confidentiality and how the testing process
will occur.

2.6.2. Informing patients with confirmed positive test results of linkages
to medical care and support around partner testing.

2.6.3. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.6.4. Notifying the Department's Infectious Disease Prevention,
Investigation and Care Services Section (IDPICSS) by telephone
of all HIV preliminary positive test results no later than 4:00 PM

t  the following business day after the day of testing.

2.6.5. Assisting the Department's IDPICSS with contacting patients with
a positive HIV diagnose for the purpose of eliciting, identifying
and locating information on sexual and/or needle-sharing
partners.

2.6.6. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.7. The Contractor shall conduct HIV testing activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.1. Utilizing all insurance options for the payment of HIV testing
services whenever possible.

2.7.2. Ordering HIV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department for uninsured and underinsured individuals.

2.7.3. Providing HIV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight fonvard in order to minimize client
barriers.

2.7.4V Prt)vidirig HIV testing utilizing fourth (4th) generatiori HIV testirig"
technology

2.7.5. Completing specimen collection for HIV tests.

2.7.6. Submitting specimens to the Department within 72 hours of

Harbor Homes. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor IniUats
RFP.2017.BIOC-15-EARLY

Page 3 of 9 Dale mjf



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-3— * —
Early intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for -
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

-- . . Exhibit ArAfTiendment SI - ' .' ~ .r?

specimen collection.

2.7.7. Completing Department-approved training for:

2.7.7.1. The operation of the rapid test technology.

2.7.7.2. Data collection.

2.7.7.3. Counseling and referral services.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure program staff attend meetings and trainings
that include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Implementation of Routine HIV Testing in Health Care Settings:
Issues for Community Health Centers.

2.8.2. Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines.

2.8.3. Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP).

2.8.4. Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP).

2.8.5. Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents, and Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings.

2.9. The Contractor shall deliver Hepatitis C (HCV) testing services, as funding is
available per Department approval. Services include but are not limited to:

2.9.1. Ordering HCV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department for uninsured and underinsured individuals.

2.9.2. Providing HCV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight forward in order to minimize' client
barriers.

2.9.3. Providing HCV testing utilizing rapid HCV testing technology.

2.9.4. Completing specimen collection for HCV tests.

2.9.5. Submitting specimens to the Department within 72 hours of
•  specimen" collection: - .... . .

3. Staffing Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall identify one staff person as the primary agency staff
person to serve as the Department's point of contact who is responsible for
responding to any Department staff inquiries and ensuring all required
reporting is complete within the specified timeframe.

3.2. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and
complete all functions, requirements, roles, and duties of the contract.

3.3. The Contractor shall train all new staff who interact with EIS clients utilizing
the HIV Navigation Services Program within three (3) months of hir

1

Haftx>r Homes. Inc. Exhibii A. Amendment 01 Contractor tnitiais

RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY
Page 4 of 9 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services— - >
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

"  "* ■ - Exhibit A, Amendment #1

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure that staff who perform testing services are
trained in using the appropriate test technology as well as trained in
providing any necessary pre and post test counseling that may be required.

3.5. The Contractor shall comply with the Department's security and
confidentiality guidelines related to all protected health information, such as
but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate
Agreement.

3.6. The Contractor shall comply with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-
P 301.02 Reportat>le Diseases.

4. Reporting Requirements and Record Keeping

4.1. The Contractor shall collect and submit forms that include client level name-

based data as specified in the reporting forms provided by the Department.
The Contractor shall:

4.1.1. Submit all required documentation related to HIV testing and
coun^ling on appropriate forms supplied by the Department for
each client supported by these funds.

4.1.2. Collect forms in a secured area for bulk submission to the

Department on the first (1*') business day of every month.

4.2. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing medical records for each individual
served. Information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:

4.2.1. Documentation of on-site provisions for all EIS services and
Behavioral Counseling.

4.2.2. Reports of the number of HIV tests conducted and positive test
results.

4.2.3. Documentation of HIV testing activities and methods.

4.2.4. Documentation of the number of referrals for health care and
.. - supportive services, as per DPHS Guidelines. - — • - -

4.3. The Contractor shall document the number of referrals and connections to

Behavioral Counseling addressing the risk for HIV acquisition.

4.4. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly report, in a format approved by the
Department that:

4.4.1. Outlines program implementation progress, challenges,
performance measures and spending.

4.4.2. Includes the number of new staff who have been hired and

HartKVHomes, Inc. ExhibliA. Amendment#! ContractorIntUab
RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY
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■' Exhibit A, Amendment #1
trained In HIV Navigation Services (HNS). *

5. Tasks & Deliverables
5.1. The Contractor shall update the workplan on at least an annual basis, or as

needed, and submit the updated plan to the Department for review and
approval.

5.2. The Contractor shall complete EIS HIV testing forms for all test kits
purchased by the Department.

6. Performance Measures

6.1.1. Performance Measure #1: To ensure that eligible EIS clients who are
tested for HIV receive their results In an appropriate timeframe as
follows;

6.1.1.1. Target: 90% of HIV test results performed on the EIS
Population will be returned to clients within 3 business days of
testing date;

6.1.1.2. Numerator: The number of HIV test results among the clients
that fall within the EIS population returned within 3 business
days of the test date; and

6.1.1.3. Denominator: The number of HIV tests performed on EIS
clients that fall within the HIV target population.

6.1.1.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined In 4.2.

6.1.2. Performance Measure #2: To ensure that EIS clients who test positive
for HIV receive their test results in appropriate time frames as follows:
6.1.2.1. Target: 95% of newly Identified, confirmed HIV positive test

results will be returned to clients within 3 business days;
... ... . -6.-1.2.2.—Numerator: - The number of newly identified, confirmed HIV-

positive test results returned to clients vtiithin 3 business days of
the test date; and

6.1.2.3. Denominator: The number of newly Identified, confirmed HIV
positive test results.

6.1.2.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined in 4.2.

Haftx>r Homes. Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
RFP-2017.BIDC-15-EARLY
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Early Intervention ̂ rvlces and Behavioral Counseling for
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Exhibit A, Amendment #1

6.1.3. Performance Measure #3: To ensure that clients who test positive for
HIV receive timely access to appropriate medical care services as
follows:

6.1.3.1. Target: 95% of newly identified HIV positive cases referred to
medical care will attend their first medical appointment within 30
days of receiving a positive test result;

6.1.3.2. Numerator: The number cases referred to medical care that

attend their first medical appointment within 30 days of
receiving a positive test result; and

6.1.3.3. Denominator: The number of newly identified HIV positive
cases that are referred to medical care services.

6.1.3.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined in 4.2.

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Statement, and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-level
Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related

expenditures. The Profit and Loss Statement shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted within
thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor will be
evaluated on the following:

7.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Defrnition; The days of operating expenses, that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments divided by total operating expenditures, less

'  depredation/amortization and in-kind* plus "principal'

payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature

within three (3) months and should not indude common
stock.

7.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have
enough cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures
for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no
variance allowed.

7.1.2. Current Ratio:

HartXM* Homes, Inc. A, Amendment Contractor Initiale
RFP.2017-BIDC-15-6ARLY
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7.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current

assets available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

7.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

7.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current ratio of 5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date
debt service.

7.1.3.3. . . Formula: Net Income plus Pepreciation/Amortizatlon
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date

■■ debt ser-ice (principal and interest) over the ne)d twelve
(12) months.

7.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements Identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

7.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an Indication of the Contractor's
ability to cover Its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total

assets.

7.1.4.3. " Formula.: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities)
~  divided by total assets.

7.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.

7.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

7.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

Harbor Homes, inc. Exhibit A. Amendment ffl Contractor initials
RFP.2ai 7-BIDC-15-EARLY
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Early intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
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7.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months, then

7.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not
met the standards.

7.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days
of notification that 7.2.1 and/or 7.2.2 have not been met.

7.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at
least every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is
achieved.

7.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to
assure continued access to services as requested-by-the
Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by t>oth parties.

7.3. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within
twenty-four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably be considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under this
Agreement with the Department.

7.4. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the
end of each month.

Harbor Homas, Irtc. Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor Inltleb
RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY
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JcfTrcjr A. Mtytn '
Commlsloocr'

Lba M Morris

Director .

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-171-4501 1-800^3345 Cit 4501

Ftx:603-27 M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nb.gov-

January 29, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House.

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

;  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control, to enter into an agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc, Vendor
#155358-8001, 45 High Street Nashua, New Hampshire. 03060, to provide early intervention services
and behavioral counseling to individuals at risk for acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus, in an
amount not to exceed $347,184, effective Governor and the Executive Council approval through June
30. 2019. 17% Federal Furids, 83% Other Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for SFY 2018 and SFY 2019, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office without approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-753$0000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, STD/HIV
PREVENTION

Fiscal Year Class/Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Total Amount

2018 ,  102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000

Total $60,000

05-95-90-902510-22290000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number
Total Amount

2018 .102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592

. Total $287,184
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EXPLANATION
(

The purpose of this request is to provide early intervention services and behavioral counselirig
to individuals vyho have been identified to meet the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's
guidelines for routine Human Immunodeficiency Virus testing, individuals with Human
Immuiiodeficiency Virus who receive medical care earlier, before their condition advances to Acquired
Immune Deficiency Syndrome, improve their health outcornes. v/hich. decreases the likelihood of
transmitting the virus to others. The United States Preventative Sen/ices Taskforce also recognizes
that behavioral counseling Interventions in a clinical setting are an important means of addressing
prevalent health-related behaviors, such as risky sexual behavior.

The Contractor will provide early intervention services, Including routine Human
Immunodeficiency Virus testing, to make Individuals aware of their Human Immunodeficiency Virus
status. Individuals who test positive for Human Immunodeficiency Virus will receive health education
and linkage to Human Immunodeficiency Virus care services. Linkage to care is essential in ensuring
an individual Is provided the opportunity to be placed on antl-retrovlral medication Nvith a goal of viral
suppression, which greatly decreases the likelihood (hat the individual will transmit the virus to others.
Additionally, the Contractor vriil provide behavioral counseling to clients who test negative for Human
Irhmun^eficiency Virus but are at high risk of acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus. The goal of
the behavioral counseling will be to Identify behavior changes to reduce the Individual's risks for
acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

Harbor Homes, Inc.. a Federally Qualified Community Health Center, was selected for this
project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department's
website from January 27, 2017 through March 9, 2017. The Department received one proposal. The
proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specrfic/ knowledge. The
review include a thorough discussion of the strengths and w/eaknesses of the proposals/applications.
The Score Summary Is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement: . . . . ... ... .

1. Referral and Llnkaoe to Care - Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests linked to HIV
care. Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests that attend their first appointment:

95% of all newly Identified HIV cases will have a documented referral to HIV medical care
at the time of positive test result

•  90% of all newly identified HIV cases will have documented attendance at their first HIV
medical care appointment within 30 days of date of referral.

2. HIV Testing - Number of tests performed. The verKJor(s) will perform a minimum number of (to
be determined within 150 days of award) HIV tests annually following the testing
recommendations outlined in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Routine HIV
Testing Guidelines, 2006.
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3. Behavioral CounselinQ. The vendor{s) will ensure that the Behavioral Counseling intervention
will serve individuals at high risk of acquiring HIV.

75% of the Behavioral Counseling caseload shall consist of HIV negative individuals who
identify with one of the follov^ng risk factors:

o Male who at the time of referral reports having unprotected sex with men; and ,

o Person who Injects drugs who at the time of referral reports.sharir^g drug injection
equipment.

. Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, early Intervention services
may not be available to New Hampshire residents who are unaware of their Human lmmurK>deficiency
Virus status. This could result In Increased transmission of Human Immunodeficiency Virus In the
community. Behavioral counseling may no\ be provided to clients, which would otherwise reduce their
risk of acquiring Human lmmunod^cler>cy Virus with the goal of preventing new Hurnan
Immunodeficiency Virus in the community.

Area served: Nashua Area.

Source of Funds: 17% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Grant, CFDA# 93.940, FAIN U62PS924538, and 83% Other
Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lisa M. Morris, MSSW
Director

Approved by:

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Dfportnwit efHtaUh ojut Human Strvica' Mittion u to join communitUi and familia
in providing epportunitia for eiliatto to oehievt health and independaiee.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

. Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Earty tntafvent/on Servtcaa end Behavioral

Counaelirfe for Human Immunodeficiency
Vims

RFP Name

RFP-2017-8IDC-15-EARLY

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Bidder Name

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Maximu

m Points

Actual

Points

200 150

200 0

200 0

1. Lindsay Pierce.
Supervisor Vll

2. Lisa Ouellette, Program
Manager

3 Lisa Roy, Viral Hepatitis
Program Coordinator

4. Rlchelle Swanson,

Administrator III

5. Jen Conroy, Business
Administrator II



«. .. r . . - FORM NUMBER P.37(veri!oD 5/8/15)Subject: pny Intervention Services and Behavioral Com«gting for HtV fRFP-2QI7-BTnc.l5.F.ARI.Y^

ttoUsS- TTus Bgreemcni and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Coui^il for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary tnust
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in wriiirig prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

general provisions

I. IDENnplCATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 -3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Harbor Homes, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

••v.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 882-3616 X 1103

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq. Director

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902510-75360000

05-95-90-902510-22290000

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30.20)9

1.8 Price Limitation

S347,184

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9330

I.II

1.13

ture

f-'T

mcnt: State of/t- .Countyof

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

P<dfcr

On /Z© i 1 . before (he undcnigncd oflficer, pciaonally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
provjm to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, end acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity
mdicateJu) block 1.12. ^ '
1 .13.1 Sijmaturt' of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Nune axx! Title ofNotaiy or Justice of the Peace
.  /' yd, . WtLUAMC.MAffnN

^'^'B^oflhePiBaoO'NewHainpshlro

la?e^3tgency Signatoryn  »-»J oramc ano I iiie 01 ̂cate Agency bignj

Dirgtfer D»>hs
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, DivLrion of Personnel (if applicable)

I  Director, On:

1.17 Approval by tl

By:

e Attorney General (Form, Substance and Exccurion) Ofoppftcable)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Execjil^vc Council fj/^pp/icab/g^

By; I t On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State orNewHnmpshire, aciing
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identined in block 1.3 ("Cohrroctor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified end more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become efTcctive on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become cffeclive on the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 C'Eneciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Daie
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
' of funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
Iwids. In the event ofa reduction or terminaiion of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such haids become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to (enninate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contracior notice of such termtnaiion. The State
shall not be required lo transfer funds from any other account
to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are {deniified and more particularly described in
E3GIIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contracior for all
expenses, of whatever nature incuned by the Contracior in the
peifomunce hereof, and shall be the only and the con^leie
conpeiMtion to the Contractor for the Slices. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 NotwithstoTKling any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8. ■

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS .

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6. t In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulaiiorut,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including.'bui not limited (O; civil rights and equal (^portunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with commuaicaiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information lo the Contractor. In addition, (he Contractor
shall comply with alt opplicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against enq>loyees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If (his Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all.rules, regulations and.orders,
and the covenants, tcnns and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contracior
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after (be
Coniple(ion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined enbrl to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Cootraciing OfTtcer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
.of any dispute concerning the iolerpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

8. EVErrr of default/remedies.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor, shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder: and/or
8.1.3 failure to p^orm any other covenant, term or condition
of this AgreemeoL
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event pf Default, the Stale
may take any one, or more, or all, of tbe following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of timie, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defhuli is
not tiniely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give tbe Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of De&uli and suspending all payments (o be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise acciue to the Convactor during the
period from the date of such notice until such tiine as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off ogainst any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CO.NFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATJON. .

9-1 As used in this Agreement, tbe word"data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perfonnance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, conqiuter programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Suite or purcha^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written qjproval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than-the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifleen (IS) days afler the date of
(erminslioQ, a report ("Termination Repbn") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
' and including the date of terniinaiion. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
(he performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an Independent conutictor, and is neither an agent nor
an enqiloyce of the Stale. Neither the Contracior nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive anybeoefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.

The ConUactor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any ■
interest in this Agr^meni without the prior.writtn notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted, by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless tbe State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all los^ suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO (he acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall he deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Conuactor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
mainUlin in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the follownng
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .(XXI.OOOper occurrence and $2 fiOOfiOO
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering nil
property subject to subparagreph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the i^te replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagreph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements ̂ iproved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. C^artmeni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in (he State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The ConlTBClor shaU furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certirtcate($)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiGcate(s) of
insurance for oil renewal(s) of ̂urance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cerii(icate(s) of
insurance and any renewals tltereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificateCs) of
insuraiKe shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is In compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers' Compensolion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -k. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
aod maintain, payment of Woricers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Offcer identified in block I ̂ 9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thaeof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Coropensaiion laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
cnfora any provisions hereof after yiy Event of Default shall
be deem^ a waiver of its rights'with regard to iharEveni of

. Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of (he Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by o party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing bycertificd mail, postage prepaid. In a United
States Post Ofllce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
' State law, rule'or policy.

. 19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TEI^IS.
This Agreement shall be construed tn accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, arid is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he parties to express their mutual >
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. Tbe parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The hcadmgs throughout the Agreement
are for reference purges only, and the words contained
.therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or .
aid in the interpretation, constrxiction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In (he event any of the provisions of
(his Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and
cITccL

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating l^reto.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreeroeot may be amended,
waived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or disch^e by the Governor end
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intenrentlon Services and Behavioral CounselinQ for
Human Immuru>def1clency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor-will submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English
pi^clency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services'
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state.court orders may have
an impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the
right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Early Intervention Services (EIS) for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus- (HIV) to all ElS-ellglble Individuals receiving
primary care services in order to assist Individuals, who are unaware of
their HIV status to learn of their status and receive either referral to
prevention services or referrals to linkages to HIV care services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Behavioral Counseling services to all EIS
eligible individuals who test negative through EIS for HIV but are idenltfied
to be at high risk of acquiring HIV.

1.5. The C^ontractor shall develop policies and procedures for delivering Early
Intervention Services (EIS) and Behavioral Counseling Interventions In
accordance with EIS Standards of Care.

1.6. The Contractor shall hire one (1) FTE Master's level program coordinator
and one (1) .250 FTE Behavioral Health counselor, both of which shall be
dedicated In their capacity to perform duties specified in Section 2 Scope
of Work.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall develop an Early Intervention Service (EIS) Program
that follows the Department's New Hampshire Ryan White Program
Standards of Care for EIS and the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention Routine HIV Testing Guidelines (2006).

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure the EIS Program services Include but are not
limited to:

2.2.1. Routine HIV Testing and Targeted Counseling;

2.2.2. Referral Services;

2.2.3. Linkage to Care; and

2.2.4. Health Education and literacy training to HIV pqsitive clients to
navigate the HIV system of care.

Hartx* Homes, Inc. Enhlbii A Contrsctor initiala^ \
RFP.2017-B1OC-15-EAR1.Y
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall develop Behavioral Counseling ihterventions as
outlined by the United States Prevenlative Services Taskforce (USPSTF).

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure Behavioral Counseling, as developed in
collaboration vwth the Department, is provided to individuals who are
identified as being at high risk for acquiring HIV.

2.5. The Contractor shall reach the target population through external referrals.
■ outreach activities: and strong collaborative relationships with area
agencies. The Contractor shall;

2.5.1. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with a fact sheet that provides
information and answers to questions that may be received from
patients about the HIV testing program.

2.5.2. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with scripts to address testing
and HIV risk with patients and to make effective referrals to HIV
testing and health clinicians.

2.5.3. Distribute printed materials regarding EIS to key agencies and
public areas in the City of.Nashua.

2.5.4. Ensure printed materials in Section 2.5.3 above Include, but are
not limited to:

2.5.4.1. Flyers.

2.5.4.2. Testing cards.

2.5.4.3. Condoms vrith testing information labels.

2.5.4.4. Informational pamphlets.

2.5.5. Ensure information regarding EIS is available on-line through
the clinic website and PSL partners' Facebodk pages. The
Contractor shall encourage;partner agencies-to-provide similar
access to EIS/HIV Information on their websites.

2.5.6. Provide education and in-house training to partner agency staff
on HIV testing and effective referrals to services.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide patient.follow up that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.6.1. Informing patients on confidentiality and how the testing process
will occur.

2.6.2. Informing patients with confirmed positive test results of
linkages to medical care and support around partner testing.

2.6.3. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.6.4. Notifying the Department's Infectious Disease Prevention,
Investigation and Care Services Section (tDPIQS§) by

Hart>or Homes, Inc..
RFP.2017^IOC-15-£ARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

telephone of all HIV preliminary positive test results no later
than 4:00 PM the following business day after the day of testing.

2.6.5. Assisting the Department's IDPICSS with contacting patients
with a positive HIV diagnose for the purpose of eliciting,
identifying and locating information on sexual and/or needle-
sharing partners.

2.6.6. Providing health,education and literacy training.

2.7. , The Contractor shall conduct HIV testing activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.1. Ordering HIV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department.

2.7.2. Providing HIV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight forward in order to minimize client
barriers.

2.7.3. Providing HIV testing utilizing:

2.7.3.1. Fourth (4th) generation HIV testing technology for
individuals who meet the criteria of a recent exposure
to HIV.

2.7.3.2. Rapid HIV testing technology for all individuals who
do not meet the criteria of a recent exposure to HIV.

2.7.4. Completing specimen collection for the HIV tests.

2.7.5. Submitflrrg specimens the Department within 72 hours of
specimen collection.

2.7.6. Completing Department-approved training for;

2.7.6.1. The operation of the rapid test technology.

2.7.6.2. Data collection.

2.7.6.3. Counseling and referral services.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure program staff attend meetings and trainings
that include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Implementation of Routine HIV Testing in Health Care Settings:
Issues for Community Health Centers.

2.8.2. The 2013 US Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF)
Recommendations on HIV Testing.

2.8.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatnrtent Guidelines. ,

2.8.4. Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP).

2.8.5. Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP).

Harbor Homes. Inc. EjtfubiiA
RFP.2017^IDC-15-eARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

-  • Exhibit A

2.8.6. Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents, and Pregnant Women In Health Care Settings.

3. Reporting Requirements and Record Keeping
3.1. The Contractor shall collect and submit forms that include client level

name-based data as specified in the reporting forms provided by the
Department. The Contractor shall;

3.1.1. Complete one (1) fomri per client.

3.1.2. Collect forms In a secured area for bulk submission to the
Department on the first (1st) business day of every month.

3.2. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing medical records for each Individual
se'rved. Information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:
3.2.1. Documentation of on-site provisions for all.ElS services and

Behavioral Counseling.

3.2.2. Reports of the number of HIV tests conducted and positive test
results.

3.2.3. Documentation of HIV testing activities and methods.

3.2.4. Documentation of the number of referrals for health care and
supportive services, as per DPHS Guidelines.

3.3., The Contractor shall document the number of referrals and connections to
Behavioral Counseling addressing the risk for HIV acquisition.

HartWf Homos. Inc. Eitiibit A Cortrador iniiia^
RFP-2017-BIDC.l5-EARLy
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

Tasks ̂  Deliverables
4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following Tasks and Deliverables begin as

specified by the Begin Date and Staff detailed in the Work Plan Table
below.

WORK PLAN TABLE

Deliverable

4.^1. Early
Intervention

Services (EIS)
Coordinator/Pr

ogram

Coordinator

4.1.2. Fully Trained

Testing and

Counseling

SUff

4.1.3. Confidential

HIV Testing

Technology

and

Counseling

Clinic Space

Task

Finalize job description; advertise
position; and collect appli^tions.

Interview applicants and hire qualified
individual.

Begin
Date

Month

1

Complete Harbor Care Clinic
Orientation and Training for new EIS
Coordinator, which includes but Is not

limited to:

• State of NH Fundamentals.

• Training for required staff.

• Work vrith the Department to
develop a risk reduction
counseling model that Is
supported by the CDC and
providing Training for Coordinator
and Clinical Supervisor.

•  In-house training, as developed
with the Department. . for any
additional staff as helpful to
support the program

Identify a space where testing and
counseling can be completed at the
H3rtx)r Care Clinic. Set up space for
testing and counseling. Identify rapid
test technology and confirmation
testing technology and Institute clinical
requirements to store test kits,
controls and perform tests according
to manufacturer's protocol and
procedures.

Month

2&3

Month

1

Staff

HR, Harbor

Homes VP,
Medical

Director

HR. EIS

Coordinator,
Clinical

Supervisor,
State of NH.

Harbor

Homes VP,
Medical
Director

Harbor Homes. Ir>c.
RFP-2017-eiOC-15-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

4.1.4. Community

Advisory
Board

Program

Input

Identify potential . community
collaborators and convene a
board meeting to assist with
shaping training, engagement,
and to establish referral sites

Month 2-3 EIS

Coordinator

4.1.5. Training for

Clinical Staff

Training for

Community
Riaferral Sites

Develop concise trainings to help
facilitate effective referrals
Internally from clinicians at Harbor
Care Clinic and externally from
partner community sites

Month 3 CAB. EIS
Coordinator.

Clinical

Supervisor

4.1.6. Fully Trained

Clinical Staff

and

Community
Referral Sites

Provide training to clinical staff
and community refenral sites to
support effective referrals into
testing and counseling

Month 3 & 4 EIS

Coordinator

4.1.7. Referral and

Tracking Plan
Finalize plan to document , track
and follow up on internal and
external referrals

Month 3 CAB. EIS
Coordinator

4.1.8. Outreach

Materials and

Plan

Finalize plan for outreach and
er^gagement and develop any
needed materials.

Month 3 & 4 CAB. EIS

Coordinator

4.1.9. Embed HIV

.  Testing and
CDC-

Supported

Risk

Reduction

Counseling,
as Developed

with the

Department
in Clinic Flow

and .

Evaluation

Program

Develop clinic plan to embed Risk
Reduction Counseling and HIV
testing into routine clinical care
flow and evaluate outcomes

Month 3 & 4 EIS

Coordinator,
Clinical

Supervisor

Hsfbor Homes. Inc.
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Early Intervention ̂ rvlces and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

4.1.10. Quality

Assurance

Plan for Risk

Reduction

Counseling

4.1.11. Irhplementing
HIV Testing

and Risk

Reduction

Counseling

4.1.12. Maintenance
\

Finalize a QA plan for Risk
Reduction Counseling In cllnica
setting

Clinicians refer high risk
indivkJuals for testing arxi
counseling. One session of Risk
Reduction Counseling is
conducted with HIV . Test (to
include tracking of number of tests
perfomned). Reactive Tests are
scheduled for return visit for
confirmatory test , results and
Second Session of Risk Reduction
Counseling. Positives linked to
medical care and ASO (to include
documentation of percentage of
newly diagnosed referred to care
and percentage of those attending
first medical care appointment).
Provide referrals, follow-up and
tracking (to include tracking of
behavioral counseling to targeted
populations -MSM and IDU).
implement QA Plan. Implement
Evaluation Plan. Implement
Outreach Plan. Collect data and
Report as required.

Communicate with staff in periodic
meetings. Communicate with
community partners and referral
agencies, . as needed. Make
improvements, as needed.
Identify additional trainings for
staff. Attend State meetings and
trainings, as required. Complete
required reporting to the State.
Institutionalize program into
routine clinical care.

Month

&4

Month ;
&

Ongoing

Month 4

&  .

Ongoing

EIS

Coordinator,
Hartwr

Horties VP,
Clinical

Supervisor,
CAB

EIS

Coordinator,

Medical

Director.

Clinical

Supervisor

EIS

Coordinator

HaitMr Homes. Inc.
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New Hampehlro Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of the individuals receiving primary
care services also receive Early Intervention Services (EIS) as part of their
regular primary care yearly appointment.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of individuals who are identified as
positive or high risk for HIV receive Behavioral Counseling as described in
this contract.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of individuals receiving HIV testing also
receive, at a minimum, one (1) Risk Reduction Counseling session.

5.4. The Contractor shall ensure 65% of staff are trained in Risk Reduction
Counseling by June 30, 2018.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of staff and 75% of Community
Partners are trained in Risk Reduction Counseling no later than June 30
2019.

//
Hsrtior Homos, Inc. Contrscto'inlUsls
RFP.2017^10C-15-EARLY
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Now Hampshire DopartmonI of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIv)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

1.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs Incurred in
accordance with the approved budget line items In Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-
2 Budget

1.2. The ̂ ntractor shall submit an invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20 ) worVing day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a dated Invoice on the Contractor's letterhead to the
Department.

1.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of. the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds
are available.

2. The final invoice shall be submitted to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

3. Invoices may be: ■

3.1 .Assigned an electronic signature and emailed to DPHScontractblllinQfS)dhhs.nh.Qov: or

3.2. Printed and hardcopy mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

4. Payrnents may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items within the price limitation, and to ̂ adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of^toth
parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Coun^*.

Harbor Homes, Inc. EiMUta
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Exhibit D>1 Budget
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New Hdmpshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
indivkiuats and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. CompliaiKe with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of indlviduals such eliglfcrility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
stale laws, r^ulatlons. orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility, determinations shall t)e made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall Include ail
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms arKf documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hareurider. as well as
intfividuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out

-  an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detaQed in Exhibit A of this

.  Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If Ills .
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sul>-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties

.  . hereto, thai no payments.will be made hereunder to reimburse the.Contractor.for costs.lncurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Coritract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applids for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulatiorts) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of exper^se other thar).such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

E)Mblt C - Special Protons Contractor iniUsts
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of.Ihe excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for sen/Ices
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Irwiigibte for such services at
any time coring the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to tf>e eligibility records specified above, the CoiMractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs

ar>d other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices wWctTsufficlenlly and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the OepartmenL and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in^dnd contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eltglblllly (Indudlr^ all forms required to determlf>e eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shaD submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non '
Profit Orgarilzations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organaatlons.
Programs. ActivlUes and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addUon to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, It Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports. arxJ records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Departrhent regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such infomiallon in connection with their ofFfdal duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services ar>d the Contract; end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any informaiion concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contrador's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

Nolwlihst^ding.anylhing lo the contrary contained herein the covenants and corKJitions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foUowino
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to-
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Dep^ent or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Rep<^: A final re^ shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Coritrart. The Final Report shall be in a forrri satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary stalefr>ent of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Servlcw: Disallowrance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the DepartmenI of the
maximum number of units provided for in Ihe Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hcreurrtJer, the Contract and all the obi>gations of the parties hereunder (except such obligaltons as,
by Ihe terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the t^ of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shaii terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report Ihe Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from Ihe Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared.
during or resulting from the p^ormance of the senrices of the Contract shall Include Ihe following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, DepartmenI of Health artd Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the Slate of New Harripshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purt^ed under the contrMi shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyrigN ownersNp for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines.
posters..or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under-the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Opormion of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
slate, county and municipal authorities and with-any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose en order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fadlity or the provision of the sen/Ices at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shaD be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and vrill at ail times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during Ihe term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In confornriance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor vwU provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Ran (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and hgij 50 or

ExtUbil C - Special Provisions Contractor iniUais
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more employees, it will mainlain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, cerllfyinp that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational InsUlutlons are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to daim the exemption,
EEOP CertHication Forms are available at: http^/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that excMd the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

COMTRACTOR EMPUOYEE WhiSTLEBLOWER RiGMTS AND REQUlREMEf^T TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
Whistleblower Rights (SEP.2013)

(a) TNs contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (^b L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employees In wiling. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c). In ail
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use ̂ bcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or fijnctions for efilciency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shaD evaluate the subconiractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the sut>contr8ctor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before.delegating

the function ^
19.2. . Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities arid how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the suticontractof's performance on an ongoing basis

ExNUt C - SfwdtJ Provtelofts Contieeior MBtti
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19.4, Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve alt sut>contracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deftdendes or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
l3t<e corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to t>e
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state artd federal lav^, regulatlorts. rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean tttat section'of the Contractor Manual v^lch Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies svhich have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERALTSTATE LAW; Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the> Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
tiley may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL; Shall rhean that document prepared by the NH Department of Adrhinistrative
Services containing a cornpflajipn pf_aILregulatipne prprnulgated.pursuant to Jhe New Hampshire
Admlntelrative Procedures Act. NH 1^^ Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implemenling Slate of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPUVNTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Ejd^lbll C - Spadal Provisions Controctor iniUals
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement (o the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder.
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, Including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eKmlnates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availabillly of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or- In part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the righl
to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The Slate shaP have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the ̂ nlractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer furxts from any other
source or account into the Accountfs) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2; Subparagraph.10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, Is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for ariy reason, at the sole discretion of the State,

30 days after giving the Coritractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreemerli.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under .the Agreement. ir>cluding but not
limlled to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and estat}lishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreemei^, including but not limited to dients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another entity Including
contracted providers or the State, the Contracbr shad provide a process for uniriterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish-a method of notifying dients and other affected Individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall Indude the proposed communications In Its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The DeparlmenI reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Coundl.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to General Provisions Contractor initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Seciions5151-5160of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part li of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by. inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to rnake one certification to the Department in each federal fiscai year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: '

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Pubfishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
vmrl^placc and specifying the actions that win be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an prigolng dmg-free awareness prograrn to Inform employees, about
1.2.1. The darters of drug a^se in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the staten^nt required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted emptoyees must provide notice, including position title,'to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was worWng. unless the Federal agency

Exhibk 0 - Ceftificatien rsgarding Drup PrM Contractor inUah
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

. 1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving nollce under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personr>el action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabllltatlon program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. leaking a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3, 1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, dty. county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

1Date i

Contractor Name:

0

Name: HVifex..
Title: ^ C.

Exhibit D - Cedification regardino Drug Free Contractor hUttab
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LQBBYIN(3

The Contractof identifred In-Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
arrd 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foltowing Certificalion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Prograrhs (Indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforceinent Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title ly

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as-Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
ceftificatlon shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 510.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such Allure.

itractor Name:

Date Nam

Exhibk E-C«rtncstton RtgjrdiAp Lobbying Contractor InUils
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identiTied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In SecUons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signlrig and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below vnO not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection With the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction. ■'

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (confract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certifrcatipn was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.. ^ '

5. The terms 'covered transaction." 'debarred,' "suspended," "ineligible,' "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," 'principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarDy excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the DefinHlons and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction wHh a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntanly excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled 'Cerlification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineliglbility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modificatibn, In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all soEcitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not detorred. suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by v^ich it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmeni of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Eihibit F - CeitrTication Rc^ardtng Debam^nt, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Re sponsa>aity Matters

cuoHHS/itoro Pt9e 1 of 2 Dale



)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.  Exhibit

inrormatlon of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
I person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
susperKied. debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other rerr>edies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals: ^
11.1. are not presently debarred, susperxled, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

yotuntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract!: been convicted of or had

a civil jud9nr>ent rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or perforrning a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of eml)ezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making felse statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not-presentiy indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (IXb)
of this certification; and

- 11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. .Where the prospective-primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knov^edge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any'federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wift
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, tneligibility. and

. Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:.

Iiln/n
Date ' ' NafW: HJc^'

Ti'le: 4 c.iSc;>

MEdiM F-Certjfiution Regarding Oelwmwnl. Sii»p«nsnn Contractor InWali
And Otrwr Retporability Matter* .
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N«w Hampshire Depanment of Hoafth oiwl Kumon 5«vlc«s
Exhibit 0

CgRTinCATlQN OP COMPUANCE WITH RgQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

fEDERAL NOWDISCRIMIWATION. EQUAL TREATMEMT OF PArTH-BASED ORQAHlZATtQNS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTtOWS

The Conlredor idantiflad In Section 1.3 of |he Ganefai Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represantattva as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the Genera) Provislorts. to exeoie dte fcOiTw^
ceitlficatlon;

Contractor wiO cornpiy. and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with eny appUceble
federal nortdlserbnlnstlon requlrerrwnts. which may include: - ■

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Ad of 1968 (42 US.C. Section 37E9d) which pratAU
reorients of fadar^ binding under (his statute from dtscriminatlng, either in employmenl pracUces or in
the delivery of servtcas or benenb. on the basis of race, color. reDglort, natlonai origin, ai^ sex. The Ad
requires certain reorients to produce en Equal Employment Oppcrtunfty Plan;

- the Jtnrenlto Justice OeCnquency Prevenllon Ad of 2O02 (42 U.S.C. Secllon 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the ctvtl rights obligatbns of the Safe Streets AcL Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohbited from disenminallng, either in empfoyment predioes orb the deBvery of services or
benefits, on the bssb of race. cotor, religion, nallona] origin, and sex The Ad bdu^ Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requlrenrMnts:

- the Chra Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.c! Section 2000d, which proMbils recbbnts of federal ftnandal
assistance from discifmbelbg on the basis of race, color, or national 6rt(^n In eny program or ectivity);

- the RehsbilftatlonAd of 19^(29 U.S.C. Sedion 794}.wtdch prohlbib recipierds of Federal fbandal
assbtanca horn tfscdmbatbg on the basis of dbebOty, b regard to employment end the del^ry of
eorvlcee or benefits, b any program or activity:

- the Americans with DfsabBiUes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohbls
dbcrtminaiion and ensures equal opportunity for persons with dbabflities In emptoymeht. State and local
government services, public eccomrnodatlons, commercial fadSies. and transportation:

- the Education Amendments of 1972 ̂  U.S.C. Sedbns 1681.1683,168S86). which prohliHs
tfsciifflination on the basis of sex In feder^ assisted education programs:

• the Age Dbcrtmbalion Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sedloru 6106-07). wtdch prohibBs dbcrlmbaboo on the
basis of age b programs or edivRiesrecervbg Federal financial assistance. Itdoesnotbdude
employmerd discrlmbation:

- 28 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatians • OJJOP Grent Programs): 28 C.F.R. pL 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nortdiscrimfnation; Equal Employment Opportunity; PoCdes
and Pror^ures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws (or Mth-based and community
organtzatJons): Execute Order No. 13S59, wl^ provide fundamental prlncsples and policy^aMng
criteria far partnersh^ with falh-based and neighborhood organizalions:

- 26 C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Depisitment of Jusiiea Regulations - Equal Treatment for FaUv-Based
Organizatioht); end Whlstlebicwrer protectibne 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natiortf! Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (F^. L 112-239, enaded January 2,2013) the Pfiot Program for
Enhancament of Conlract Employee WhbUeblower Protectfons, profods employees against
reprisal for certain whhtle blowirtg activBies b conr\edion with federal grania end contracts.

The certificate edt out below is a material represerrialion of fed upon which refiance b pieced when the
agency ewards the grant, Ftbe certification or vfobtion of the certification shall be groimds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termballon of grants, or govemmeRl wide suspension or
debisnneni

k-
Pigololl Diri l^li^j/7

EdASG
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
di^rirninaUon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religton, national origin, or sex
again^ a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Senrices pfTtce of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceftrfication:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Oat? '

actor Name

Tide; ^

ExhUtG

Contractor
CwVkaMon •( Ccrrpteica mS> poaiwfig i» rfcwOicrtwirwiow. Tnwrmw «f F«W-Amm Organtedien*

Km. IMinr

MMNtflMlMr pfMOiwtl

Pago 2 012 Date!Mil



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor ̂cility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or.library services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either ,
directly or through Stale or local govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid fur>ds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as iderdified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with aD applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

u/a?//7
■Date

Title:

Exh3>it H - C«rtHic«tion Regarding ConUadOf irUliais
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreenient agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Inforrriation under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'pre?gh' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

*>• 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Trtle 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AaQreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Agl" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitieXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.- - -

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and. Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Informat'on. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "Individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

ExWbtt I Contrtdo*
HetBh Insurance PortabiQty Ad
Busincsa Assodate Agreement

Page 1 of 6 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

f. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary-shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Hufnan Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rufq' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subparl C. and amendments (hereto.

Urisecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information (hat Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other pefinition$ - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
estaUished under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, arid the
HITECH

Act. ~

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
•  Infom^tion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate-
M. As required by law., pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

0. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure (i)
reasonable awurances frorri the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busimss

^  ExhlWll , ConUacloi IniliaJ
Health Insurance Portabaity Ad
Business Associate AQreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered EnWy notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be twund by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Buslnegs Associate.

a.. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of^ahy use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificalion;

0 The'unaulhorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; i

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquire or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered.Enlity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Buslrwss Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI cohlained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivlpgJ'^HI

WOU Exhibit I ContTBdofWll
Health IriMrance Poftability Act
Business Assodaie Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Wfttiin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Q. WitNn ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. .

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. Ill the event any individual requests access to. ameridment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicatjie.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extcrid the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasiWe. for so long as BusinessfT^i '< ■

e^^MI Cwtfictof >nm»h .. .. ,
Health IftsureneePonablUty Ad ■' \ |;
SusinauAaaociato Agroement !'
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ExhlbHI

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(sj in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals v/hose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Tennfnation for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P'37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definttions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amerKJed
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as ̂
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessa^ to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretatiof). The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be revived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExNbit I Contrtdof InftJsIs'
HetRh Insuranc* PonabiGty Act
Business Associate Agfeemenl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. Seareoalion. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or (he application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance, is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions virhich can be given effect vnthout the Invalid term or condlllon; to this end the
terrns and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS VWHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Stat

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Of theDontrador

mA
s ature of thorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

ixImIiz
Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabllity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants ̂ ual to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first«tier sub^grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is betow $25,000 but subsequent grant modirications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requiren^ents. as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)-must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award titlie descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the,entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must 6ut)mit FFATA required data by the end of the nwnth, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisk)r>s agrees to comply v/iih the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: ,
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

R //^ //^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibits

FORMA

As the Contr^tor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: | ̂5"^

2. In your business or organization s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1)80 percent or. more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreementsi and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

K NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.TSmfa). 76o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

. 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

The names and. compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Nanrte:

Name:.

Name:,

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:.

Amount:
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